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 1                 (HEARING COMMENCED AT 11:11 A.M.)
 2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Yes, we have a
 3         quorum.  Good morning, everyone.  We will call the
 4         Narragansett Bay Commission Board of Commissioners
 5         meeting to order at 11:11 on June 21, 2016.
 6         Recognizing a quorum, have all of our members had
 7         an opportunity to review approval of the previous
 8         minutes?
 9                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  So moved.
10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I have a motion to
11         approve the previous minutes.
12                 COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.
13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Seconded by
14         Commissioner Montanari, Rotella and Milas.
15         Discussion on the previous minutes?
16                 (NO RESPONSE)
17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all
18         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
19                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Any opposed?
21                 (NO RESPONSE)
22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  And the motion
23         carries.  Thank you.  Minutes are approved.  All
24         right, Committee Reports and Action -- I'm sorry,
25         sorry.  I'm trying to rush here.  Item Number 3,
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 1         Executive Director's Report.  Mr. Secretary?
 2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.
 3         Operations division the plants are turning out
 4         high quality effluent.  Our turbines have been
 5         running consistently well over the last month
 6         since we last met, and Interceptor Maintenance
 7         completed their annual inspection of the
 8         facilities associated with the hurricane barrier
 9         that's located further up Allens Avenue to make
10         sure that it's ready for the hurricane season.
11                 You might be interested to know that the
12         equipment associated with the sewer system that we
13         actually operate is owned by the City of
14         Providence.  So we have made some minor repairs to
15         keep it operating.  Quite frankly, it needs to be
16         replaced.  We've been lobbying the city to do so
17         over the last few years to no avail.  We've also
18         gotten the Army Corps of Engineers involved.  I
19         believe Meg was at a meeting this morning, Meg
20         Goulet, and she's going to report back to me when
21         she gets done to see what this year's efforts
22         bring forth in terms of replacing a lot of the
23         mechanisms, the gates, the operators, the valving,
24         whatever.
25                 In Engineering, we did respond to DEM's
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 1         comments on the Phase III report.  We've heard
 2         nothing from them since.  We're supposed to be
 3         scheduling a meeting to try to work out our
 4         differences.  In the meantime, we're moving ahead
 5         with the Phase III work in terms of survey and
 6         borings and preparing a lot of the expected
 7         standard spec sections and the like, and we're
 8         going to be doing -- we're also doing the
 9         hydraulic modeling and system to try to maximize
10         the effectiveness of the system that we will
11         design.
12                 In addition, the Greenville Avenue Sewer
13         Project, which will be going up to pick up the
14         Citizens Bank complex as well as other homeowners
15         along the Greenville Avenue stretch, the survey is
16         done, the borings are underway, and all I can tell
17         you is there is a lot of rock in Greenville
18         Avenue.  So, we'll evaluate exactly what we're
19         going to be building while I believe we can design
20         it to be all served by gravity.  I'm beginning to
21         question whether that's the way we should go.  So
22         we might end up with a small pump station.  We'll
23         see what happens when the borings finally come in,
24         but we have three projects ready for bid this
25         summer.
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 1                 Engineering and Construction will be
 2         working on that.  There are some action items
 3         before the CEO committee that will help us get
 4         ready to do that.  When those bids come in, they
 5         will come before you next fall; probably
 6         September, potentially the November meeting.
 7         Construction has been busy wrapping up the Water
 8         Quality Science Building Project.  You'll get a
 9         chance to see it today in about an hour or so, and
10         they've been doing the landscaping and a lot of
11         the cleanup work inside the building making sure
12         all the systems are being tested, and staff will
13         probably start moving across the street in phases
14         over the next couple of weeks.
15                 In A&F, the FY-'16 budget ends in about
16         ten days, and we will finish under budget this
17         year.  The FY-'17 budget was brought before
18         finance today, most of you were here for that.
19         So, we'll ask the full Board to act on it in just
20         a few minutes.  We're beginning to prepare for the
21         audit for the FY-'16 fiscal year which, again,
22         closes in about two weeks, and that order will
23         come before you for consideration in September.
24         We're also working on all employee evaluations and
25         salary adjustments, and those are pending the
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 1         budget approval before we can implement any of
 2         those, but we're doing all the background work to
 3         be in a position to do that.
 4                 Policy Planning has spent a lot of time
 5         reviewing the new draft permits that DEM has
 6         issued.  We have several comments and concerns and
 7         questions, and we have put them on notice that we
 8         have a number of the items that we want to rebut,
 9         and we're going to schedule a meeting with them to
10         sit down and go through each one to see what we
11         can work out before the final draft is issued for
12         public comment and full implementation.
13                 Water quality sampling efforts have ramped
14         up for the summer with the warm weather arriving
15         and, you know, everyone has a renewed interest in
16         beaches and shellfishing.  The water quality
17         results have been excellent so far, so we want to
18         stay on top of that.  So we've worked very well
19         with DEM in terms of sharing that information with
20         them, and they're able to make much better calls
21         on beach closures and shellfish closures in terms
22         of when and the length of time each has to occur.
23                 And in Executive, we're working with the
24         City of Providence.  They need some room to store
25         some road salt for the upcoming season, and
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 1         they're asking if they can use the Old Transfer
 2         Station that we acquired from them several years
 3         ago as a staging area for that.  So we're trying
 4         to work out the details of that with them.  We're
 5         trying to be good neighbors, and once in a while
 6         we need a favor from them so this would be
 7         something that, I think, is in our overall best
 8         interest.
 9                 The General Assembly session is finally
10         over, it was a hectic one.  Joanne will have a
11         report for you in a little while.  You know that
12         we met last week on the wind turbines from Wind
13         Energy Development.  That resolution passed.
14         We're continuing to work through all the documents
15         that the lawyers are pouring over.  Hopefully,
16         we'll have signable contracts in the next few
17         weeks.  And we are also working with the solar
18         energy firm that you selected or you authorized us
19         to proceed with.  We seem to be making progress
20         slowly but surely, and we're still hopeful, but at
21         some point we're going to just give them a
22         drop-dead deadline, and either we're going to get
23         this done or we're not.
24                 There was some activity up in the General
25         Assembly, budget articles and bills and everything
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 1         that could potentially have affected how that
 2         project played out, but I think we've gotten by
 3         all of that.  So that's pretty much what's been
 4         going on.  If you have any questions, I'll be
 5         happy to answer them.
 6                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  All the
 7         members have heard the report from the Executive
 8         Director.  Are there any questions or comments?
 9         Commissioner Burroughs?
10                 COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Do you have any
11         insight on what's going to happen with the
12         stormwater issue and what that group is up to?
13                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  The whole
14         concept of having a regional entity handle the
15         stormwater is probably going to go by the wayside
16         at this point because all the different parties
17         had different opinions on how the stormwater
18         regional effort should proceed, and lack of an
19         agreement on what it all would involve -- sort of,
20         everyone moved back into their own sphere of
21         influence and they said, "You know what, we'll
22         just do it ourselves."  That's pretty much the way
23         it's going to play out.  DEM is now starting to
24         work with the communities to sign administrative
25         orders or, you know, whatever that they need to do
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 1         to make sure that they have some influence over
 2         when and how that work gets done.
 3                 COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Did they ever
 4         reach any understanding of the cost?
 5                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Well, only very --
 6         only very generally.  I mean, they all understand
 7         now that it's going to cost a lot of money to get
 8         a program in place.  And by that, I mean, know
 9         where everything is, clean everything, make sure
10         that you have a handle on flows that are going to
11         be coming out of your pipes and the quality of the
12         water that's going to be coming out.  They only --
13         depending on the community, they have a pretty
14         good idea of whether it's going to cost them
15         millions, tens of millions, or hundreds of
16         millions of dollars, you know, to solve the
17         problem, but they don't really know exactly yet.
18                 COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Thank you.
19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No matter what, it's
20         going to be a very effective and efficient
21         program, no matter what.
22                 COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Thank you.  I'm
23         reassured.
24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Worrell?
25                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  How in the world is
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 1         Providence ever going to address that issue?  I
 2         mean, they can't keep the streets swept now, never
 3         mind the --
 4                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Street sweeping is
 5         one of the components of the stormwater.
 6                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Well, you see,
 7         that's the easiest way.
 8                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No, no, no.  The
 9         stormwater is going to wash away all the dirt,
10         litter, and they won't have to sweep.  It's a
11         cost-efficient undertaking.
12                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Well, that's a
13         great scientific development.
14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Listen, I'm in
15         complete agreement.  I'm in complete agreement.  I
16         don't know what's wrong with me today, I'm just --
17                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  In answering Mr.
18         Burroughs' -- Professor Burroughs' question, your
19         answer is that nothing is going to happen; is that
20         right?
21                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Oh, no, I think
22         things will happen.  I just don't know at what
23         rate they'll happen and how effective what they're
24         going to end up doing will be.
25                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  I'm not sure how
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 1         that's different, but that's a nice answer.
 2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I try hard.
 3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I think we should
 4         form another stakeholder's committee.
 5         Commissioner Carlino?
 6                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Do you think that's
 7         at a state level or a city level?
 8                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I'm not sure I
 9         understand what you're --
10                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  So they basically
11         said, "We're not going to -- we're not going to
12         worry about it this year."  Is the stormwater
13         issue, will it be -- do you think it's going to be
14         handled by the state or will they ask each city,
15         which they did years ago, to address it?
16                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Oh, no, each city
17         will have to address their own issue, but the
18         state has a role.  I mean, DEM oversees
19         everything -- all of those -- all the communities
20         in the state, all 39 cities and towns.  But the
21         state has another role in the form of the DOT who
22         also has to address all of their stormwater
23         issues.  But overseeing them is not DEM, it's EPA
24         and the Department of Justice because nothing was
25         happening, so the Feds stepped in.


Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500







Page 13


 1                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Okay, thank you.
 2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I'm sure it's going
 3         to be efficient.  Okay, other questions, comments
 4         regarding the Executive Director's Report?
 5                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Mr. Chairman, I
 6         just have one question.
 7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed with your
 8         question, Commissioner Bennett.
 9                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  The reality
10         Commissioner Worrell brings up, it's reality.  I
11         mean, having been on the other side in Providence,
12         it's very difficult to reallocate resources to
13         things like this.  So, you know, typically what
14         I've seen your organization do in the past is kind
15         of be creative and do it yourself so it gets done.
16         So we can either talk about doing it and it never
17         gets done, or we do it ourselves.  So maybe in
18         your thought process moving forward -- we can't
19         wait for them.
20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I agree.
21                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Just a thought.
22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I agree with you.
23         Okay, moving right along.  We have Committee
24         Reports and Action Items Resulting.  The first
25         committee reporting is the CEO Committee.
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 1         Commissioner MacQueen, do you have a report for us
 2         today?
 3                 COMMISSIONER MACQUEEN:  Yes, I do,
 4         Chairman.
 5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed.
 6                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  We have four
 7         resolutions to Review.  The committee passed them
 8         all.  The first one was Review and Approval of
 9         Resolution 2016:15; Award of Contract 130.00
10         Fields Point Final Clarifier and Miscellaneous
11         Improvements.  Ray?
12                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Thank you.  This
13         project involves a number of improvements at the
14         Fields Point Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The
15         primary work is being done on the final
16         clarifiers.  And on three of those final
17         clarifiers, we're going to replace the scraper
18         mechanisms which are located at the bottom of the
19         tank.  We won't see them if there's water in the
20         tanks, of course, but on the empty tanks you can
21         see them.  It sort of moves all the activated
22         sledge that falls to the bottom of the tanks and
23         moves it to a central location for a
24         re-circulation process.
25                 We're also going to make other
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 1         improvements in the clarifiers which include
 2         covering the effluent line that we call it, which
 3         is the channel on the outside perimeter of the
 4         tank that collects all the clarified effluent.
 5         The water is so clear that the light can penetrate
 6         it, and it creates algae growth which becomes a
 7         maintenance problem for us.  So we're going to
 8         cover that to, you know, minimize that.  We're
 9         also going to do some work that has to do -- they
10         have concrete stairs that are tending to erode
11         over there, so we're going to replace those with
12         aluminum stairs.  And there's some piping -- we're
13         going to change some rooftop HVAC units that need
14         to be replaced.
15                 So it's kind of a mismashed contract of
16         all these different little things that we've
17         identified through the asset management program
18         that we have in place.  So, staff actually put
19         this contract together internally.  We didn't have
20         an outside consultant on this, so we did the
21         specs, we did the plans with our own forces.  We
22         received two bids on June 7th, and they're
23         contractors that are well-known to us, Hart
24         Engineering Corporation and Daniel O'Connell &
25         Sons.  They're great contractors.
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 1                 Hart was the low bidder at 3.727 to 3.7
 2         million, just a little above.  That was about 12
 3         percent lower than the Daniel O'Connell bid.  So
 4         we checked with Hart to make sure that they were
 5         comfortable with their bid and they said they
 6         were.  So we decided to move forward with the
 7         project.  We, of course, checked their
 8         credentials, which we know well.  They are the
 9         lowest responsive and responsible bidder, and if
10         you approve awarding the contract to them, they
11         will have to get they're MBE/WBE plans and EEO
12         requirements approved by the Rhode Island
13         Department of Administration.  So, with that, we
14         ask your approval of Resolution 2016:15 as
15         outlined.
16                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  I move passage.
17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner MacQueen
18         moves passage of Resolution 2016:15, Water
19         Contract 130 -- 130.00 Fields Point Clarifier.
20                 COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.
21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner
22         Montanari seconds the motion.  Is there further
23         discussion on Resolution 2016:15?  Further
24         discussion?
25                 (NO RESPONSE)
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 1                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
 2         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
 3                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
 4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
 5         opposed?
 6                 (NO RESPONSE)
 7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
 8         opposed and the motion carries.  Further report?
 9         Commissioner MacQueen?
10                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Yes.  Review and
11         Approval of Resolution 2016:16; Award of Contract
12         304.57RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
13         Consulting Services for 78-Inch Interceptor
14         Replacement, and I move to pass it.
15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to
16         approve Resolution 2016:16.  Discussion?  Ray?
17                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  This resolution
18         and the next two, when we get to them, essentially
19         what their request for is assistance with
20         engineering consulting during construction.  So
21         during the bidding process, reviewing shop
22         drawings once the project gets awarded, doing some
23         specialty resident inspection.  All of these jobs
24         we're going to do the actual hard core resident
25         inspection ourselves with our own staff.  So that
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 1         just kind of sets the stage for each of the three.
 2         This particular one is with a company called
 3         Stantec.  We awarded a contract to them a couple
 4         of years ago to evaluate a 78-inch interceptor
 5         that takes the flow from the Providence River
 6         syphon, which starts on the east side of the
 7         Providence River just below the hurricane barrier,
 8         and takes it under the river to the west side
 9         where it then discharges into this pipe that we're
10         addressing today.
11                 This pipe has some significant problems
12         with it -- along one 500-foot stretch of it.  The
13         rest of the pipe seems to be in pretty good shape.
14         We've had some deterioration with excessive
15         cracking and there's a sag in the pipe as well.
16         We really need to get out there and replace this.
17         What makes this job very difficult is it's right
18         alongside of Route 195 of the new project; all the
19         bridge abutments and everything.  So it will
20         require a fair amount of supportive excavation
21         activity which really adds to the cost, which is
22         estimated at 7.4 million.
23                 Like I mentioned it, the job will be bid
24         this summer.  So, we'll come back to you with the
25         bid results and the final recommendation for award
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 1         to a contractor in the fall.  But, for now, we
 2         need the assistance of Stantec as we move into the
 3         bidding process, and that will also -- this effort
 4         will also carryover when a contractor is actually
 5         identified and we sign construction documents with
 6         them.  We've negotiated a ceiling price of
 7         $100,000 for this work for Stantec, and that's
 8         what is outlined in Resolution 2016:16, and we ask
 9         your approval.
10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  So, we do
11         have a motion to approve Resolution 2016:16.  Was
12         that seconded by Commissioner Montanari?  It was.
13         Commissioner Farnum as well.  Is there further
14         discussion on the resolution?  Further discussion
15         or questions, comments?
16                 (NO RESPONSE)
17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
18         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
19                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
21         opposed?
22                 (NO RESPONSE)
23                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
24         opposed and the motion carries.  Further new
25         business?
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 1                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Review and
 2         Approval of Resolution 2016:17; Award of contract
 3         304.44RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
 4         Consulting Services for Moshassuck Valley
 5         Interceptor Replacement, and I move passage.  Is
 6         there a motion, Mr. Chairman?
 7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to
 8         approve Resolution 2016:17, seconded by
 9         Commissioner Montanari and Commissioner Farnum.
10         Explanations, Director?
11                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  This project is
12         actually located in Central Falls.  It's the
13         section of the Moshassuck Valley Interceptor that
14         was constructed in the mid-1950s by the Blackstone
15         Valley District Sewer Commission, and it collects
16         combined stormwater and wastewater from Central
17         Falls, Lincoln and Pawtucket.  We have problems
18         with this pipe based on video surveys and actual
19         in-person inspections.  There are cracks along the
20         pipe.  The pipe is pretty damaged, and we need to
21         replace -- it's about 3,000 feet of this pipe that
22         is going to be replaced, and we're going to
23         replace it with 24-inch PVC pipe.  So it will be
24         brand new.
25                 We do get some surcharging in this area,
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 1         which means the flow backs up because of the sags
 2         in the pipe.  The soils are bad out there, so
 3         we've had a robust geotechnical design effort
 4         associated with this design.  Louis Berger Group
 5         is the designer on this, but Paul Aldinger &
 6         Associates is their subcontractor, and he's the
 7         one that's been doing all of the supportive
 8         excavation and supportive pipe work.  We estimate
 9         that this project will probably cost in the $5
10         million range, but we'll find out this summer when
11         we put it out to bid.
12                 And, again, we'll bring back the bid
13         results to you with the recommendation in the fall
14         that will be the September meeting.  Potentially,
15         or it will be the meeting following that.  But, in
16         the meantime, we're looking for a contract award
17         to Berger to help us again with assistance during
18         bidding, answering questions, doing shop drawing
19         reviews and geotechnical inspections once the work
20         begins, and we've negotiated a cost ceiling of
21         $150,000 for these services, and that's all
22         contained in Resolution 2016:17, and we ask your
23         approval of that.
24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to
25         approve Resolution 2016:17, seconded by
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 1         Commissioner Montanari.  Is there a discussion or
 2         comments regarding the resolution?
 3                 (NO RESPONSE)
 4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all
 5         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
 6                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
 7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
 8         opposed?
 9                 (NO RESPONSE)
10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
11         opposed and the motion carries.  Further report,
12         Commissioner MacQueen?
13                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Review and
14         Approval of Resolution 2016:18; Award of Contract
15         109.08RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
16         Consulting Services for Fields Point Blower
17         Improvements Phase II, and I move to passage.
18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I have a motion to
19         approve Resolution 2016:18, seconded by
20         Commissioner Montanari.  Mr. Secretary?
21                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes, this is a
22         continuing project that we probably started about
23         two years ago now when we had some issues with the
24         new turbo blowers that we had installed when we
25         upgraded the treatment plant.  Their reliability
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 1         came into question.  We went out for an emergency
 2         contract and purchased two of the more traditional
 3         technology blowers called centrifugal blowers.
 4         Those are installed and now we have that whole
 5         array of blower capacity available to us to keep
 6         the process running.  We lose aeration, we lose
 7         the process and we lose treatment, and we violate
 8         our permit.
 9                 So this is a long-term fix that will
10         dovetail with what we already have in place, and
11         will provide some additional assurance that we'll
12         always have the air going into the treatment
13         process that we need.  CDM Smith has been the
14         designer on this.  They've done a really good job,
15         and we're asking for a contract that we can enter
16         into with them in the amount of $468,000, which
17         will provide assistance during bidding, shop
18         drawing review, O&M manual presentation, startup
19         training as well as limited inspection, that is
20         the specialty inspection that we'll encounter in
21         terms of electrical and instrumentation-type
22         efforts.  We'll do most of the resident inspection
23         ourselves.
24                 This project is estimated to cost about
25         4.7 million.  So the engineering fee for this job,
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 1         when you compare it to the bid price or the
 2         expected bid price of 4.7 million to the others,
 3         the difference is this is much more complex.  The
 4         pipe jobs that we just talked about are more
 5         straightforward.  There is not a lot of technical
 6         review, but there is some that needs to be done.
 7         There were so many other disciplines that are
 8         involved in a project like this that, you know,
 9         require additional scrutiny and evaluation.
10         That's the reason why proportionally the fee is
11         higher.  I wanted to explain that for you.  That's
12         all included in Resolution 2016:18, and we ask
13         your approval.
14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion and
15         a second to approve Resolution 2016:18.  Are there
16         any comments, questions, regarding the matter?
17                 (NO RESPONSE)
18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
19         those that are in favor of approval will say,
20         "Aye."
21                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
23         opposed?
24                 (NO RESPONSE)
25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
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 1         opposed and the motion carries.  Commissioner
 2         MacQueen, further report?
 3                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  That's all I have,
 4         Chairman.
 5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.
 6         Next committee reporting is the Finance Committee.
 7         Finance Committee Chair, Commissioner Andrade is
 8         unavailable today.  The chairman chaired the
 9         finance committee meeting.  There are two matters
10         that need consideration by the Board.  The first
11         matter is Review and Approval of Resolution
12         2016:19; Narragansett Bay Commission Fiscal Year
13         2017 Operating Budget.  Is there anyone who does
14         not have a copy of this document?  Karen, are you
15         going to do an overview, or does the Board want an
16         overview?  I don't know who was here and who was
17         not here during the budget discussion.
18                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  There were twelve
19         commissioners that were here during that budget
20         discussion.  I don't know if Karen just wants to
21         give a real quick recap.
22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  For the record,
23         Karen, do you want to give some highlights?
24                 MS. GIEBINK:  Sure.  Good morning.  This
25         is the fiscal year 2017 operating budget, and
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 1         there's a lot of information in here.  Overall,
 2         we're looking at a 2.5 percent increase in the
 3         budget over last year's levels.  There are two
 4         additional FTEs included in the budget.  Other
 5         noteworthy items are that there are a number of
 6         impacts that the projects that are anticipated
 7         being completed in fiscal year 2017 will have on
 8         this years operating budget, and they're basically
 9         advantageous to NBC, and those are lighted in the
10         budget document as well.
11                 There is no anticipated borrowing in next
12         years budget, which I'm very sad about.  But we're
13         gearing up for Phase III, there was a little bit
14         of a respite there.  Those are the highlights.
15         There was one change to the resolution under Item
16         8, which is new language that was inserted into
17         the resolution this year, and I'd be happy to
18         answer any questions if you have any.
19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, most of the
20         commissioners were here during the presentation of
21         the budget, but are there any questions regarding
22         fiscal year 2017 budget document?  Of course the
23         Executive Director and Karen are available at all
24         times as you go through this document.  If you
25         have any questions, just feel free to give a call.
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 1         Ray?
 2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  If you want to know
 3         what the actual resolution reads, if you go to
 4         your budget document and go to the last tab, the
 5         Supporting Schedules, in the first three pages,
 6         which is 221, 222 and 223, that's actually what
 7         you'll be approving or not, depending on your
 8         choice in this resolution.
 9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  The Chairman
10         moves we approve Resolution 2016:19.  Seconded by
11         Commissioner Lemont, Commissioner Kimball,
12         Commissioner Carlino.  Discussion on the document?
13         Or discussion on the resolution, I should say.
14                 (NO RESPONSE)
15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
16         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
17                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
19         opposed?
20                 (NO RESPONSE)
21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
22         opposed and the motion carries.  Other item is
23         Item B, which is Review and Approval of Resolution
24         2016:20; which is Recommendation for Use of the
25         Environmental Enforcement Funds.  The resolution
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 1         provides for a -- providing what?
 2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  $2,500.
 3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  $2,500 to the Len
 4         Walker Memorial Scholarship Fund for -- this is a
 5         matter which has been near and dear to our late
 6         colleague, Mike Salvatore.  We've done this
 7         annually, and the Chairman moves that we approve
 8         Resolution 2016:20, and it's seconded by
 9         Commissioner Milas, MacQueen, Montanari, Burroughs
10         Lemont and Kimball.  Discussion on the matter?
11                 (NO RESPONSE)
12                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
13         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
14                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
16         opposed?
17                 (NO RESPONSE)
18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
19         opposed, and the motion carries.  Moving right
20         along, Personnel Committee.  Commissioner
21         Campbell?
22                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  The Personnel
23         Committee met and we approved amendments to the
24         personnel plan, and they included a list of
25         reclassifications and the creation of two new
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 1         positions, and they are all included in the 2017
 2         budget.
 3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  You should all have a
 4         copy of this that was provided to you, which is
 5         now made a part of the 2017 fiscal document.  I
 6         don't think approval is necessary.
 7                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  It's not.
 8                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  It does not need a
 9         motion on that.  Next committee reporting is Long
10         Range Planning.
11                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Long Range Planning
12         did not meet.
13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No meeting, Long
14         Range Planning.  Rules & Regulations did not meet.
15         Ad Hoc on Ethics did not meet.  Executive
16         Committee has not met.  Compensation Committee has
17         not met.  Legislative Report, Joanne?
18                 MS. MACERONI:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  As the
19         Executive Director noted, the General Assembly
20         recessed this Saturday.  This is a preliminary
21         report that you have on your website until I'm
22         able to determine what actually has finally come
23         out of the session as we go forward.  There are
24         several bills that we were actively involved with
25         which I just wanted to make note to you.  The
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 1         first one is Article II of the budget.  This has
 2         to do with the Public Finance Management Board and
 3         Debt Management.  It calls for an affordability
 4         study of all agencies within the state and
 5         municipalities.  And the study will be including
 6         recommended limits for debt capacity for each
 7         entity.
 8                 As you may recall, there were other bills
 9         out there that made this limit a mandatory limit,
10         which we had grave concerns about.  So we're
11         relieved to see that this is just a recommended
12         limit, which we will be getting.  In addition,
13         with regard to Article II, this final article
14         contains several deadlines which were proposed by
15         the Narragansett Bay Commission to give the
16         reporting entities a more realistic time frame to
17         ensure their compliance.  So we were very happy
18         that the General Treasurer and the General
19         Assembly agreed with our proposals.
20                 The next Bill, H-8354, this bill takes the
21         place of Article XVIII, and it has to do with
22         renewable energy and net metering.  Again, the
23         Narragansett Bay Commission proposed the extension
24         of two deadlines.  The first being the December
25         31st, 2016 deadline which was for grandfathering
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 1         remote net metered systems eligible to receive the
 2         distribution credit.  They did change that and
 3         they extended it to December of 2018, which we
 4         were very happy that they did that.  And the
 5         second deadline that we asked for an extension was
 6         January 2040.  That's the date that net metering
 7         credit would start to be reduced for
 8         non-grandfathered projects.  That deadline was
 9         extended to 2050, so we were very happy with that
10         also.
11                 And, last, but not least, H-7511 sub A and
12         sub B, as you know, we did get involved in the
13         drone issue.  We have concerns about drones flying
14         over our facilities and the possible damage they
15         could do.  There is a drone commission as well as
16         there were several bills out there, including
17         7511.  That's the last -- that's the only bill
18         that actually made it through.  What it does is it
19         grants exclusive authority to regulate drones to
20         the State of Rhode Island and the Rhode Island
21         Airport Corporation.  We will be working hard with
22         the drone commission and the state as they develop
23         the regulations to ensure that the concerns of all
24         wastewater treatment facilities are addressed.
25                 The rest of the report contains all the
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 1         bills that did not pass that we were following,
 2         and I am happy to say that all the bills that we
 3         opposed did not make it through.  So, as of now, I
 4         think we had a good session.  I'll know more in
 5         the next couple of weeks, but that's my report for
 6         today.
 7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  The mere sight of you
 8         up there, Joanne, strikes fear into the heart of
 9         the legislation.
10                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Mr. Chairman, if I
11         could, I want the Board to know just how many
12         hours and how hard and how many headaches Joanne
13         incurred over this General Assembly session,
14         especially in the last several days.  She was
15         literally home on a Friday night and in the middle
16         of the night got up, I believe she contacted one
17         of our commissioners, as a matter of fact.  It was
18         like two or three in the morning you went over
19         there or something crazy like that because a bill
20         surfaced out of nowhere.  I mean, it is just -- I
21         mean, it's amazing what she has done, and we
22         should really thank her because we wouldn't be in
23         the position that we're in if she hadn't been up
24         there as much as she did.  Thank you, Joanne.
25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I want to add that
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 1         it's very obvious when you go into the building,
 2         the high amount of respect by all the legislatures
 3         there they have for Joanne.  We appreciate your
 4         efforts, Joanne.  And by the way, Joan Milas is up
 5         there watching out for us as well, spending a lot
 6         of time up there in the wee hours.  Joan, thank
 7         you as well.
 8                 COMMISSIONER MILAS:  We were together at
 9         4:00 in the morning.
10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Do you know how rare
11         it is to find Joanne home on a Friday night?
12                 COMMISSIONER MILAS:  As opposed to me on a
13         Friday night that spends it at the State House?
14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.
15         Next report, Citizens Advisory Committee.  Is
16         there anybody here?  How are you?
17                 MR. SCHACTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
18         We had a very productive meeting.  We took the
19         opportunity of inviting Walter Palm, the current
20         laboratory manager in, and he gave us a view of
21         the past and, of course, an overview of the future
22         as the transition goes forward from old to new in
23         the laboratory area.  It was very, very
24         informative.  And, of course, Walter's 15 years of
25         service told us a lot, and we give him very, very
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 1         high marks for his efforts before, and we look
 2         forward to many years working with him.  But it
 3         was extremely a great opportunity at a time like
 4         this, as the transition goes forward, to have a
 5         firsthand view from the chief.  That's my report.
 6         Thank you.
 7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.
 8         Thank you.  Next item, Item Number 7, Chairman's
 9         Report.  Very busy week for the Chairman -- it's
10         been a busy month, I should say.  I've spent a
11         great deal of this past month working with legal
12         counsel, Joe DeAngelis and Laurie Horridge
13         regarding the Wind Energy Development
14         Corporation's project in Coventry, our net
15         metering program.  There were tense meetings.  A
16         number of issues surfaced.  Laurie and Joe worked
17         very diligently to protect the Commissioners'
18         interests.  We're moving forward.
19                 I don't know the exact date that we're
20         going to be turning the switch and generating
21         power, but our next meeting is going to be on
22         September the 20th because we're taking the summer
23         off.  But, if anything happens during that period
24         of time when we culminate all of the issues that
25         are still being worked on, everyone of you will be
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 1         notified.  I'm certain there's going to be some
 2         kind of -- I'm told there's going to be a press
 3         conference or a press release issued by the
 4         developer as he kicks off this project in the next
 5         three or four weeks, maybe, I'm not sure.  I'm
 6         certain that we will be invited.  Of course we'll
 7         invite all the commissioners as well, and we will
 8         apprise the Board on any matters of concern as
 9         soon as we know the climate regarding the final
10         resolution to all of the issues.
11                 So, as I said, the next meeting is
12         September the 20th, and I want you to have a great
13         safe healthy summer, but before we adjourn, I
14         would like to say that -- just before we adjourn,
15         we're going to take a group photo.  I think we're
16         going to do it here.  Where is Jamie?  Jamie is
17         organizing this.  I don't know where she is.  Is
18         she in the room?
19                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  No, she's just
20         walking in now.
21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  So, what Jamie
22         is intending for us to do is to get a group photo
23         here, and then we're going to go over to the new
24         lab building.  We're going to cut a ribbon and
25         we're going to dedicate this building to our
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 1         former commissioner, the late Commissioner Len
 2         Walker.  His family will be here and then after
 3         that, we're going to -- in the operations building
 4         there's refreshments and some food.  So, let me
 5         just -- we have about two minutes left to adjourn
 6         the meeting.  Jamie?
 7                 MS. SAMONS:  So, we're actually going to
 8         do the group photo over in the new building.
 9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There's been a
10         change.  Like in the General Assembly, things
11         change very quickly around here.
12                 MS. SAMONS:  Because the light is so good
13         over there.
14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  Well,
15         that's great.  That's fine with me.  So that
16         really concludes the Chairman's Report, and we'll
17         keep you apprised of everything that is happening
18         with Wind Energy.  And Laurie, again, thank you so
19         much for your efforts in helping to bring that to
20         a close.  Joe, you did great.  We know we can
21         always count on you.  Thank you.  Is there any new
22         business to come before the Board today?
23                 (NO RESPONSE)
24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No new business.
25         Other business of any nature?  Commissioner
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 1         Kimball, do you have something?
 2                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  At the last
 3         meeting, Mr. Chairman, we talked about perhaps
 4         visiting the site of -- the Coventry site.
 5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Yes.
 6                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  Has anything been
 7         arranged, or are we going to wait until all the
 8         details are worked out?
 9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  What say you,
10         counselor?
11                 MS. HORRIDGE:  I guess we could arrange
12         for everyone to go out there.  I mean, I don't
13         know why you necessarily want to see it before
14         it's turnkey since that will probably happen in
15         the next month anyway.  It probably makes sense to
16         wait.
17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Kimball,
18         do you want to see it before we actually close it?
19                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  No.
20                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I'll tell you what,
21         what I would suggest is that if you're interested
22         in going out to see the actual site, send an
23         e-mail to Karen Musumeci and, you know, roughly
24         when is the best time.  One of the things we might
25         run into is the fact that if it's scheduled for a
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 1         particular day, a lot of folks might be on
 2         vacation or whatever.  So, you know, we can -- not
 3         everyone has to go at the same time is what I was
 4         trying to get out.  If there are three or four or
 5         five of you and it's all different times, Rich
 6         Bernier and his team will be happy to take you
 7         down there because they know where everything is
 8         and they can ride you through, you know, the
 9         project, and we want to keep an eye on what's
10         going on down there anyway so --
11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So Richard and Tom
12         have been going on a pretty regular basis; right?
13         You guys have been going down?
14                 MR. UVA:  Rich has.
15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  How often do you --
16         Rich?
17                 MR. BERNIER:  How often do we go down?
18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Yeah, how often?
19                 MR. BERNIER:  Well, lately, not too often
20         because it's rough.
21                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Okay, but you
22         wouldn't mind going once a week anyway; right?
23                 MR. BERNIER:  Anytime.
24                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  Can he just do a
25         drive-by or is it --
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 1                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  You can see them
 2         from 102, some of them.
 3                 MR. BERNIER:  You can just see just above
 4         the treetops.
 5                 COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  The road in is
 6         blocked off unless you're -- just see above the
 7         treetops Farnum.
 8                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Anybody want to go
 9         down next week at all?  Does anybody want to go
10         down?
11                 MS. DeROCHE:  Yeah.
12                 MS. MILAS:  Yeah.
13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, pick a day.
14         Pick a day.  Give me a day, we'll do it right now.
15                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  Well, right next
16         to the entrance to the whole project is this place
17         called the Sawmill Produce -- or they grow
18         vegetables and stuff.  It would make sense if
19         people wanted to go there is to meet there at a --
20         I think I'm pretty sure you can park in there, or
21         meet there at a particular day and time, and then
22         go in with Rich or Tom.
23                 MS. HORRIDGE:  Why don't we coordinate
24         that with the developer.
25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Sure.  All right, so
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 1         what we'll do --
 2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Next Wednesday or
 3         Thursday, maybe, we'll give it a try.
 4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We'll coordinate
 5         something.  Call everyone and we'll figure out
 6         just exactly how we're going to organize it, okay.
 7         We'll get it done next week.  Okay, great.  Any
 8         other new business?  Other business of any kind?
 9         No one?
10                 (NO RESPONSE)
11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Bennett
12         moves that we adjourn; right?
13                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Yes, sir.
14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Bennett
15         moves that we adjourn.  Seconded by Commissioner
16         Farnum.  All in favor of adjournment will say,
17         "Aye."
18                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Any opposed?
20                 (NO RESPONSE)
21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  None opposed.  We are
22         now adjourned.
23                 (HEARING ADJOURNED AT 11:57 A.M.)
24
25
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 1                        C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-I-O-N
 2         STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
           PROVIDENCE, SC.
 3
 4                 I, SALLY BRASSARD, do hereby certify that
 5         the foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete
 6         transcript of my notes taken at the above-entitled
 7         proceeding.
 8                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
 9         hand this 5th day of July, 2016.
10
11
12
13
14                          ________________________________
                            SALLY BRASSARD, CSR/RPR
15                          NOTARY PUBLIC
                            MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  1/16/17
16
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 1      (HEARING COMMENCED AT 11:11 A.M.)
 2      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Okay.  Yes, we have a
 3  quorum.  Good morning, everyone.  We will call the
 4  Narragansett Bay Commission Board of Commissioners
 5  meeting to order at 11:11 on June 21, 2016.
 6  Recognizing a quorum, have all of our members had
 7  an opportunity to review approval of the previous
 8  minutes?
 9      COMMISSIONER KIMBALL: So moved.
10      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: I have a motion to
11  approve the previous minutes.
12      COMMISSIONER MONTANARI: Second.
13      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Seconded by
14  Commissioner Montanari, Rotella and Milas.
15  Discussion on the previous minutes?
16      (NO RESPONSE)
17      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Hearing none, all
18  those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
19      (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
20      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Any opposed?
21      (NO RESPONSE)
22      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: And the motion
23  carries.  Thank you.  Minutes are approved.  All
24  right, Committee Reports and Action -- I'm sorry,
25  sorry.  I'm trying to rush here.  Item Number 3,
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 1  Executive Director's Report.  Mr. Secretary?
 2      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
 3  Operations division the plants are turning out
 4  high quality effluent.  Our turbines have been
 5  running consistently well over the last month
 6  since we last met, and Interceptor Maintenance
 7  completed their annual inspection of the
 8  facilities associated with the hurricane barrier
 9  that's located further up Allens Avenue to make
10  sure that it's ready for the hurricane season.
11      You might be interested to know that the
12  equipment associated with the sewer system that we
13  actually operate is owned by the City of
14  Providence.  So we have made some minor repairs to
15  keep it operating.  Quite frankly, it needs to be
16  replaced.  We've been lobbying the city to do so
17  over the last few years to no avail.  We've also
18  gotten the Army Corps of Engineers involved.  I
19  believe Meg was at a meeting this morning, Meg
20  Goulet, and she's going to report back to me when
21  she gets done to see what this year's efforts
22  bring forth in terms of replacing a lot of the
23  mechanisms, the gates, the operators, the valving,
24  whatever.
25      In Engineering, we did respond to DEM's
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 1  comments on the Phase III report.  We've heard
 2  nothing from them since.  We're supposed to be
 3  scheduling a meeting to try to work out our
 4  differences.  In the meantime, we're moving ahead
 5  with the Phase III work in terms of survey and
 6  borings and preparing a lot of the expected
 7  standard spec sections and the like, and we're
 8  going to be doing -- we're also doing the
 9  hydraulic modeling and system to try to maximize
10  the effectiveness of the system that we will
11  design.
12      In addition, the Greenville Avenue Sewer
13  Project, which will be going up to pick up the
14  Citizens Bank complex as well as other homeowners
15  along the Greenville Avenue stretch, the survey is
16  done, the borings are underway, and all I can tell
17  you is there is a lot of rock in Greenville
18  Avenue.  So, we'll evaluate exactly what we're
19  going to be building while I believe we can design
20  it to be all served by gravity.  I'm beginning to
21  question whether that's the way we should go.  So
22  we might end up with a small pump station.  We'll
23  see what happens when the borings finally come in,
24  but we have three projects ready for bid this
25  summer.
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 1      Engineering and Construction will be
 2  working on that.  There are some action items
 3  before the CEO committee that will help us get
 4  ready to do that.  When those bids come in, they
 5  will come before you next fall; probably
 6  September, potentially the November meeting.
 7  Construction has been busy wrapping up the Water
 8  Quality Science Building Project.  You'll get a
 9  chance to see it today in about an hour or so, and
10  they've been doing the landscaping and a lot of
11  the cleanup work inside the building making sure
12  all the systems are being tested, and staff will
13  probably start moving across the street in phases
14  over the next couple of weeks.
15      In A&F, the FY-'16 budget ends in about
16  ten days, and we will finish under budget this
17  year.  The FY-'17 budget was brought before
18  finance today, most of you were here for that.
19  So, we'll ask the full Board to act on it in just
20  a few minutes.  We're beginning to prepare for the
21  audit for the FY-'16 fiscal year which, again,
22  closes in about two weeks, and that order will
23  come before you for consideration in September.
24  We're also working on all employee evaluations and
25  salary adjustments, and those are pending the
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 1  budget approval before we can implement any of
 2  those, but we're doing all the background work to
 3  be in a position to do that.
 4      Policy Planning has spent a lot of time
 5  reviewing the new draft permits that DEM has
 6  issued.  We have several comments and concerns and
 7  questions, and we have put them on notice that we
 8  have a number of the items that we want to rebut,
 9  and we're going to schedule a meeting with them to
10  sit down and go through each one to see what we
11  can work out before the final draft is issued for
12  public comment and full implementation.
13      Water quality sampling efforts have ramped
14  up for the summer with the warm weather arriving
15  and, you know, everyone has a renewed interest in
16  beaches and shellfishing.  The water quality
17  results have been excellent so far, so we want to
18  stay on top of that.  So we've worked very well
19  with DEM in terms of sharing that information with
20  them, and they're able to make much better calls
21  on beach closures and shellfish closures in terms
22  of when and the length of time each has to occur.
23      And in Executive, we're working with the
24  City of Providence.  They need some room to store
25  some road salt for the upcoming season, and
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 1  they're asking if they can use the Old Transfer
 2  Station that we acquired from them several years
 3  ago as a staging area for that.  So we're trying
 4  to work out the details of that with them.  We're
 5  trying to be good neighbors, and once in a while
 6  we need a favor from them so this would be
 7  something that, I think, is in our overall best
 8  interest.
 9      The General Assembly session is finally
10  over, it was a hectic one.  Joanne will have a
11  report for you in a little while.  You know that
12  we met last week on the wind turbines from Wind
13  Energy Development.  That resolution passed.
14  We're continuing to work through all the documents
15  that the lawyers are pouring over.  Hopefully,
16  we'll have signable contracts in the next few
17  weeks.  And we are also working with the solar
18  energy firm that you selected or you authorized us
19  to proceed with.  We seem to be making progress
20  slowly but surely, and we're still hopeful, but at
21  some point we're going to just give them a
22  drop-dead deadline, and either we're going to get
23  this done or we're not.
24      There was some activity up in the General
25  Assembly, budget articles and bills and everything
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 1  that could potentially have affected how that
 2  project played out, but I think we've gotten by
 3  all of that.  So that's pretty much what's been
 4  going on.  If you have any questions, I'll be
 5  happy to answer them.
 6      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Okay.  All the
 7  members have heard the report from the Executive
 8  Director.  Are there any questions or comments?
 9  Commissioner Burroughs?
10      COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS: Do you have any
11  insight on what's going to happen with the
12  stormwater issue and what that group is up to?
13      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Yes.  The whole
14  concept of having a regional entity handle the
15  stormwater is probably going to go by the wayside
16  at this point because all the different parties
17  had different opinions on how the stormwater
18  regional effort should proceed, and lack of an
19  agreement on what it all would involve -- sort of,
20  everyone moved back into their own sphere of
21  influence and they said, "You know what, we'll
22  just do it ourselves."  That's pretty much the way
23  it's going to play out.  DEM is now starting to
24  work with the communities to sign administrative
25  orders or, you know, whatever that they need to do
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 1  to make sure that they have some influence over
 2  when and how that work gets done.
 3      COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS: Did they ever
 4  reach any understanding of the cost?
 5      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Well, only very --
 6  only very generally.  I mean, they all understand
 7  now that it's going to cost a lot of money to get
 8  a program in place.  And by that, I mean, know
 9  where everything is, clean everything, make sure
10  that you have a handle on flows that are going to
11  be coming out of your pipes and the quality of the
12  water that's going to be coming out.  They only --
13  depending on the community, they have a pretty
14  good idea of whether it's going to cost them
15  millions, tens of millions, or hundreds of
16  millions of dollars, you know, to solve the
17  problem, but they don't really know exactly yet.
18      COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS: Thank you.
19      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: No matter what, it's
20  going to be a very effective and efficient
21  program, no matter what.
22      COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS: Thank you.  I'm
23  reassured.
24      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Commissioner Worrell?
25      COMMISSIONER WORRELL: How in the world is
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 1  Providence ever going to address that issue?  I
 2  mean, they can't keep the streets swept now, never
 3  mind the --
 4      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Street sweeping is
 5  one of the components of the stormwater.
 6      COMMISSIONER WORRELL: Well, you see,
 7  that's the easiest way.
 8      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: No, no, no.  The
 9  stormwater is going to wash away all the dirt,
10  litter, and they won't have to sweep.  It's a
11  cost-efficient undertaking.
12      COMMISSIONER WORRELL: Well, that's a
13  great scientific development.
14      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Listen, I'm in
15  complete agreement.  I'm in complete agreement.  I
16  don't know what's wrong with me today, I'm just --
17      COMMISSIONER WORRELL: In answering Mr.
18  Burroughs' -- Professor Burroughs' question, your
19  answer is that nothing is going to happen; is that
20  right?
21      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Oh, no, I think
22  things will happen.  I just don't know at what
23  rate they'll happen and how effective what they're
24  going to end up doing will be.
25      COMMISSIONER WORRELL: I'm not sure how
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 1  that's different, but that's a nice answer.
 2      SECRETARY MARSHALL: I try hard.
 3      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: I think we should
 4  form another stakeholder's committee.
 5  Commissioner Carlino?
 6      COMMISSIONER CARLINO: Do you think that's
 7  at a state level or a city level?
 8      SECRETARY MARSHALL: I'm not sure I
 9  understand what you're --
10      COMMISSIONER CARLINO: So they basically
11  said, "We're not going to -- we're not going to
12  worry about it this year."  Is the stormwater
13  issue, will it be -- do you think it's going to be
14  handled by the state or will they ask each city,
15  which they did years ago, to address it?
16      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Oh, no, each city
17  will have to address their own issue, but the
18  state has a role.  I mean, DEM oversees
19  everything -- all of those -- all the communities
20  in the state, all 39 cities and towns.  But the
21  state has another role in the form of the DOT who
22  also has to address all of their stormwater
23  issues.  But overseeing them is not DEM, it's EPA
24  and the Department of Justice because nothing was
25  happening, so the Feds stepped in.
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 1      COMMISSIONER CARLINO: Okay, thank you.
 2      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: I'm sure it's going
 3  to be efficient.  Okay, other questions, comments
 4  regarding the Executive Director's Report?
 5      COMMISSIONER BENNETT: Mr. Chairman, I
 6  just have one question.
 7      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Proceed with your
 8  question, Commissioner Bennett.
 9      COMMISSIONER BENNETT: The reality
10  Commissioner Worrell brings up, it's reality.  I
11  mean, having been on the other side in Providence,
12  it's very difficult to reallocate resources to
13  things like this.  So, you know, typically what
14  I've seen your organization do in the past is kind
15  of be creative and do it yourself so it gets done.
16  So we can either talk about doing it and it never
17  gets done, or we do it ourselves.  So maybe in
18  your thought process moving forward -- we can't
19  wait for them.
20      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: I agree.
21      COMMISSIONER BENNETT: Just a thought.
22      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: I agree with you.
23  Okay, moving right along.  We have Committee
24  Reports and Action Items Resulting.  The first
25  committee reporting is the CEO Committee.
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 1  Commissioner MacQueen, do you have a report for us
 2  today?
 3      COMMISSIONER MACQUEEN: Yes, I do,
 4  Chairman.
 5      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Proceed.
 6      COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN: We have four
 7  resolutions to Review.  The committee passed them
 8  all.  The first one was Review and Approval of
 9  Resolution 2016:15; Award of Contract 130.00
10  Fields Point Final Clarifier and Miscellaneous
11  Improvements.  Ray?
12      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Thank you.  This
13  project involves a number of improvements at the
14  Fields Point Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The
15  primary work is being done on the final
16  clarifiers.  And on three of those final
17  clarifiers, we're going to replace the scraper
18  mechanisms which are located at the bottom of the
19  tank.  We won't see them if there's water in the
20  tanks, of course, but on the empty tanks you can
21  see them.  It sort of moves all the activated
22  sledge that falls to the bottom of the tanks and
23  moves it to a central location for a
24  re-circulation process.
25      We're also going to make other
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 1  improvements in the clarifiers which include
 2  covering the effluent line that we call it, which
 3  is the channel on the outside perimeter of the
 4  tank that collects all the clarified effluent.
 5  The water is so clear that the light can penetrate
 6  it, and it creates algae growth which becomes a
 7  maintenance problem for us.  So we're going to
 8  cover that to, you know, minimize that.  We're
 9  also going to do some work that has to do -- they
10  have concrete stairs that are tending to erode
11  over there, so we're going to replace those with
12  aluminum stairs.  And there's some piping -- we're
13  going to change some rooftop HVAC units that need
14  to be replaced.
15      So it's kind of a mismashed contract of
16  all these different little things that we've
17  identified through the asset management program
18  that we have in place.  So, staff actually put
19  this contract together internally.  We didn't have
20  an outside consultant on this, so we did the
21  specs, we did the plans with our own forces.  We
22  received two bids on June 7th, and they're
23  contractors that are well-known to us, Hart
24  Engineering Corporation and Daniel O'Connell &
25  Sons.  They're great contractors.
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 1      Hart was the low bidder at 3.727 to 3.7
 2  million, just a little above.  That was about 12
 3  percent lower than the Daniel O'Connell bid.  So
 4  we checked with Hart to make sure that they were
 5  comfortable with their bid and they said they
 6  were.  So we decided to move forward with the
 7  project.  We, of course, checked their
 8  credentials, which we know well.  They are the
 9  lowest responsive and responsible bidder, and if
10  you approve awarding the contract to them, they
11  will have to get they're MBE/WBE plans and EEO
12  requirements approved by the Rhode Island
13  Department of Administration.  So, with that, we
14  ask your approval of Resolution 2016:15 as
15  outlined.
16      COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN: I move passage.
17      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Commissioner MacQueen
18  moves passage of Resolution 2016:15, Water
19  Contract 130 -- 130.00 Fields Point Clarifier.
20      COMMISSIONER MONTANARI: Second.
21      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Commissioner
22  Montanari seconds the motion.  Is there further
23  discussion on Resolution 2016:15?  Further
24  discussion?
25      (NO RESPONSE)
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 1      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Hearing none, all of
 2  those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
 3      (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
 4      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Are there any
 5  opposed?
 6      (NO RESPONSE)
 7      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: There are none
 8  opposed and the motion carries.  Further report?
 9  Commissioner MacQueen?
10      COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN: Yes.  Review and
11  Approval of Resolution 2016:16; Award of Contract
12  304.57RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
13  Consulting Services for 78-Inch Interceptor
14  Replacement, and I move to pass it.
15      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: We have a motion to
16  approve Resolution 2016:16.  Discussion?  Ray?
17      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Yes.  This resolution
18  and the next two, when we get to them, essentially
19  what their request for is assistance with
20  engineering consulting during construction.  So
21  during the bidding process, reviewing shop
22  drawings once the project gets awarded, doing some
23  specialty resident inspection.  All of these jobs
24  we're going to do the actual hard core resident
25  inspection ourselves with our own staff.  So that


Page 18


 1  just kind of sets the stage for each of the three.
 2  This particular one is with a company called
 3  Stantec.  We awarded a contract to them a couple
 4  of years ago to evaluate a 78-inch interceptor
 5  that takes the flow from the Providence River
 6  syphon, which starts on the east side of the
 7  Providence River just below the hurricane barrier,
 8  and takes it under the river to the west side
 9  where it then discharges into this pipe that we're
10  addressing today.
11      This pipe has some significant problems
12  with it -- along one 500-foot stretch of it.  The
13  rest of the pipe seems to be in pretty good shape.
14  We've had some deterioration with excessive
15  cracking and there's a sag in the pipe as well.
16  We really need to get out there and replace this.
17  What makes this job very difficult is it's right
18  alongside of Route 195 of the new project; all the
19  bridge abutments and everything.  So it will
20  require a fair amount of supportive excavation
21  activity which really adds to the cost, which is
22  estimated at 7.4 million.
23      Like I mentioned it, the job will be bid
24  this summer.  So, we'll come back to you with the
25  bid results and the final recommendation for award


Page 19


 1  to a contractor in the fall.  But, for now, we
 2  need the assistance of Stantec as we move into the
 3  bidding process, and that will also -- this effort
 4  will also carryover when a contractor is actually
 5  identified and we sign construction documents with
 6  them.  We've negotiated a ceiling price of
 7  $100,000 for this work for Stantec, and that's
 8  what is outlined in Resolution 2016:16, and we ask
 9  your approval.
10      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: All right.  So, we do
11  have a motion to approve Resolution 2016:16.  Was
12  that seconded by Commissioner Montanari?  It was.
13  Commissioner Farnum as well.  Is there further
14  discussion on the resolution?  Further discussion
15  or questions, comments?
16      (NO RESPONSE)
17      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Hearing none, all of
18  those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
19      (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
20      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Are there any
21  opposed?
22      (NO RESPONSE)
23      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: There are none
24  opposed and the motion carries.  Further new
25  business?
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 1      COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN: Review and
 2  Approval of Resolution 2016:17; Award of contract
 3  304.44RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
 4  Consulting Services for Moshassuck Valley
 5  Interceptor Replacement, and I move passage.  Is
 6  there a motion, Mr. Chairman?
 7      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: We have a motion to
 8  approve Resolution 2016:17, seconded by
 9  Commissioner Montanari and Commissioner Farnum.
10  Explanations, Director?
11      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Yes.  This project is
12  actually located in Central Falls.  It's the
13  section of the Moshassuck Valley Interceptor that
14  was constructed in the mid-1950s by the Blackstone
15  Valley District Sewer Commission, and it collects
16  combined stormwater and wastewater from Central
17  Falls, Lincoln and Pawtucket.  We have problems
18  with this pipe based on video surveys and actual
19  in-person inspections.  There are cracks along the
20  pipe.  The pipe is pretty damaged, and we need to
21  replace -- it's about 3,000 feet of this pipe that
22  is going to be replaced, and we're going to
23  replace it with 24-inch PVC pipe.  So it will be
24  brand new.
25      We do get some surcharging in this area,
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 1  which means the flow backs up because of the sags
 2  in the pipe.  The soils are bad out there, so
 3  we've had a robust geotechnical design effort
 4  associated with this design.  Louis Berger Group
 5  is the designer on this, but Paul Aldinger &
 6  Associates is their subcontractor, and he's the
 7  one that's been doing all of the supportive
 8  excavation and supportive pipe work.  We estimate
 9  that this project will probably cost in the $5
10  million range, but we'll find out this summer when
11  we put it out to bid.
12      And, again, we'll bring back the bid
13  results to you with the recommendation in the fall
14  that will be the September meeting.  Potentially,
15  or it will be the meeting following that.  But, in
16  the meantime, we're looking for a contract award
17  to Berger to help us again with assistance during
18  bidding, answering questions, doing shop drawing
19  reviews and geotechnical inspections once the work
20  begins, and we've negotiated a cost ceiling of
21  $150,000 for these services, and that's all
22  contained in Resolution 2016:17, and we ask your
23  approval of that.
24      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: We have a motion to
25  approve Resolution 2016:17, seconded by
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 1  Commissioner Montanari.  Is there a discussion or
 2  comments regarding the resolution?
 3      (NO RESPONSE)
 4      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Hearing none, all
 5  those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
 6      (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
 7      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Are there any
 8  opposed?
 9      (NO RESPONSE)
10      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: There are none
11  opposed and the motion carries.  Further report,
12  Commissioner MacQueen?
13      COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN: Review and
14  Approval of Resolution 2016:18; Award of Contract
15  109.08RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
16  Consulting Services for Fields Point Blower
17  Improvements Phase II, and I move to passage.
18      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: I have a motion to
19  approve Resolution 2016:18, seconded by
20  Commissioner Montanari.  Mr. Secretary?
21      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Yes, this is a
22  continuing project that we probably started about
23  two years ago now when we had some issues with the
24  new turbo blowers that we had installed when we
25  upgraded the treatment plant.  Their reliability
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 1  came into question.  We went out for an emergency
 2  contract and purchased two of the more traditional
 3  technology blowers called centrifugal blowers.
 4  Those are installed and now we have that whole
 5  array of blower capacity available to us to keep
 6  the process running.  We lose aeration, we lose
 7  the process and we lose treatment, and we violate
 8  our permit.
 9      So this is a long-term fix that will
10  dovetail with what we already have in place, and
11  will provide some additional assurance that we'll
12  always have the air going into the treatment
13  process that we need.  CDM Smith has been the
14  designer on this.  They've done a really good job,
15  and we're asking for a contract that we can enter
16  into with them in the amount of $468,000, which
17  will provide assistance during bidding, shop
18  drawing review, O&M manual presentation, startup
19  training as well as limited inspection, that is
20  the specialty inspection that we'll encounter in
21  terms of electrical and instrumentation-type
22  efforts.  We'll do most of the resident inspection
23  ourselves.
24      This project is estimated to cost about
25  4.7 million.  So the engineering fee for this job,
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 1  when you compare it to the bid price or the
 2  expected bid price of 4.7 million to the others,
 3  the difference is this is much more complex.  The
 4  pipe jobs that we just talked about are more
 5  straightforward.  There is not a lot of technical
 6  review, but there is some that needs to be done.
 7  There were so many other disciplines that are
 8  involved in a project like this that, you know,
 9  require additional scrutiny and evaluation.
10  That's the reason why proportionally the fee is
11  higher.  I wanted to explain that for you.  That's
12  all included in Resolution 2016:18, and we ask
13  your approval.
14      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: We have a motion and
15  a second to approve Resolution 2016:18.  Are there
16  any comments, questions, regarding the matter?
17      (NO RESPONSE)
18      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Hearing none, all of
19  those that are in favor of approval will say,
20  "Aye."
21      (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
22      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Are there any
23  opposed?
24      (NO RESPONSE)
25      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: There are none
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 1  opposed and the motion carries.  Commissioner
 2  MacQueen, further report?
 3      COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN: That's all I have,
 4  Chairman.
 5      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Thank you very much.
 6  Next committee reporting is the Finance Committee.
 7  Finance Committee Chair, Commissioner Andrade is
 8  unavailable today.  The chairman chaired the
 9  finance committee meeting.  There are two matters
10  that need consideration by the Board.  The first
11  matter is Review and Approval of Resolution
12      2016:19; Narragansett Bay Commission Fiscal Year
13  2017 Operating Budget.  Is there anyone who does
14  not have a copy of this document?  Karen, are you
15  going to do an overview, or does the Board want an
16  overview?  I don't know who was here and who was
17  not here during the budget discussion.
18      SECRETARY MARSHALL: There were twelve
19  commissioners that were here during that budget
20  discussion.  I don't know if Karen just wants to
21  give a real quick recap.
22      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: For the record,
23  Karen, do you want to give some highlights?
24      MS. GIEBINK: Sure.  Good morning.  This
25  is the fiscal year 2017 operating budget, and
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 1  there's a lot of information in here.  Overall,
 2  we're looking at a 2.5 percent increase in the
 3  budget over last year's levels.  There are two
 4  additional FTEs included in the budget.  Other
 5  noteworthy items are that there are a number of
 6  impacts that the projects that are anticipated
 7  being completed in fiscal year 2017 will have on
 8  this years operating budget, and they're basically
 9  advantageous to NBC, and those are lighted in the
10  budget document as well.
11      There is no anticipated borrowing in next
12  years budget, which I'm very sad about.  But we're
13  gearing up for Phase III, there was a little bit
14  of a respite there.  Those are the highlights.
15  There was one change to the resolution under Item
16  8, which is new language that was inserted into
17  the resolution this year, and I'd be happy to
18  answer any questions if you have any.
19      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: So, most of the
20  commissioners were here during the presentation of
21  the budget, but are there any questions regarding
22  fiscal year 2017 budget document?  Of course the
23  Executive Director and Karen are available at all
24  times as you go through this document.  If you
25  have any questions, just feel free to give a call.
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 1  Ray?
 2      SECRETARY MARSHALL: If you want to know
 3  what the actual resolution reads, if you go to
 4  your budget document and go to the last tab, the
 5  Supporting Schedules, in the first three pages,
 6  which is 221, 222 and 223, that's actually what
 7  you'll be approving or not, depending on your
 8  choice in this resolution.
 9      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Okay.  The Chairman
10  moves we approve Resolution 2016:19.  Seconded by
11  Commissioner Lemont, Commissioner Kimball,
12  Commissioner Carlino.  Discussion on the document?
13  Or discussion on the resolution, I should say.
14      (NO RESPONSE)
15      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Hearing none, all of
16  those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
17      (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
18      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Are there any
19  opposed?
20      (NO RESPONSE)
21      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: There are none
22  opposed and the motion carries.  Other item is
23  Item B, which is Review and Approval of Resolution
24      2016:20; which is Recommendation for Use of the
25  Environmental Enforcement Funds.  The resolution
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 1  provides for a -- providing what?
 2      SECRETARY MARSHALL: $2,500.
 3      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: $2,500 to the Len
 4  Walker Memorial Scholarship Fund for -- this is a
 5  matter which has been near and dear to our late
 6  colleague, Mike Salvatore.  We've done this
 7  annually, and the Chairman moves that we approve
 8  Resolution 2016:20, and it's seconded by
 9  Commissioner Milas, MacQueen, Montanari, Burroughs
10  Lemont and Kimball.  Discussion on the matter?
11      (NO RESPONSE)
12      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Hearing none, all of
13  those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
14      (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
15      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Are there any
16  opposed?
17      (NO RESPONSE)
18      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: There are none
19  opposed, and the motion carries.  Moving right
20  along, Personnel Committee.  Commissioner
21  Campbell?
22      COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL: The Personnel
23  Committee met and we approved amendments to the
24  personnel plan, and they included a list of
25  reclassifications and the creation of two new
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 1  positions, and they are all included in the 2017
 2  budget.
 3      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: You should all have a
 4  copy of this that was provided to you, which is
 5  now made a part of the 2017 fiscal document.  I
 6  don't think approval is necessary.
 7      SECRETARY MARSHALL: It's not.
 8      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: It does not need a
 9  motion on that.  Next committee reporting is Long
10  Range Planning.
11      COMMISSIONER CARLINO: Long Range Planning
12  did not meet.
13      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: No meeting, Long
14  Range Planning.  Rules & Regulations did not meet.
15  Ad Hoc on Ethics did not meet.  Executive
16  Committee has not met.  Compensation Committee has
17  not met.  Legislative Report, Joanne?
18      MS. MACERONI: Yes, Mr. Chairman.  As the
19  Executive Director noted, the General Assembly
20  recessed this Saturday.  This is a preliminary
21  report that you have on your website until I'm
22  able to determine what actually has finally come
23  out of the session as we go forward.  There are
24  several bills that we were actively involved with
25  which I just wanted to make note to you.  The
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 1  first one is Article II of the budget.  This has
 2  to do with the Public Finance Management Board and
 3  Debt Management.  It calls for an affordability
 4  study of all agencies within the state and
 5  municipalities.  And the study will be including
 6  recommended limits for debt capacity for each
 7  entity.
 8      As you may recall, there were other bills
 9  out there that made this limit a mandatory limit,
10  which we had grave concerns about.  So we're
11  relieved to see that this is just a recommended
12  limit, which we will be getting.  In addition,
13  with regard to Article II, this final article
14  contains several deadlines which were proposed by
15  the Narragansett Bay Commission to give the
16  reporting entities a more realistic time frame to
17  ensure their compliance.  So we were very happy
18  that the General Treasurer and the General
19  Assembly agreed with our proposals.
20      The next Bill, H-8354, this bill takes the
21  place of Article XVIII, and it has to do with
22  renewable energy and net metering.  Again, the
23  Narragansett Bay Commission proposed the extension
24  of two deadlines.  The first being the December
25  31st, 2016 deadline which was for grandfathering
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 1  remote net metered systems eligible to receive the
 2  distribution credit.  They did change that and
 3  they extended it to December of 2018, which we
 4  were very happy that they did that.  And the
 5  second deadline that we asked for an extension was
 6  January 2040.  That's the date that net metering
 7  credit would start to be reduced for
 8  non-grandfathered projects.  That deadline was
 9  extended to 2050, so we were very happy with that
10  also.
11      And, last, but not least, H-7511 sub A and
12  sub B, as you know, we did get involved in the
13  drone issue.  We have concerns about drones flying
14  over our facilities and the possible damage they
15  could do.  There is a drone commission as well as
16  there were several bills out there, including
17  7511.  That's the last -- that's the only bill
18  that actually made it through.  What it does is it
19  grants exclusive authority to regulate drones to
20  the State of Rhode Island and the Rhode Island
21  Airport Corporation.  We will be working hard with
22  the drone commission and the state as they develop
23  the regulations to ensure that the concerns of all
24  wastewater treatment facilities are addressed.
25      The rest of the report contains all the


Page 32


 1  bills that did not pass that we were following,
 2  and I am happy to say that all the bills that we
 3  opposed did not make it through.  So, as of now, I
 4  think we had a good session.  I'll know more in
 5  the next couple of weeks, but that's my report for
 6  today.
 7      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: The mere sight of you
 8  up there, Joanne, strikes fear into the heart of
 9  the legislation.
10      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Mr. Chairman, if I
11  could, I want the Board to know just how many
12  hours and how hard and how many headaches Joanne
13  incurred over this General Assembly session,
14  especially in the last several days.  She was
15  literally home on a Friday night and in the middle
16  of the night got up, I believe she contacted one
17  of our commissioners, as a matter of fact.  It was
18  like two or three in the morning you went over
19  there or something crazy like that because a bill
20  surfaced out of nowhere.  I mean, it is just -- I
21  mean, it's amazing what she has done, and we
22  should really thank her because we wouldn't be in
23  the position that we're in if she hadn't been up
24  there as much as she did.  Thank you, Joanne.
25      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: I want to add that
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 1  it's very obvious when you go into the building,
 2  the high amount of respect by all the legislatures
 3  there they have for Joanne.  We appreciate your
 4  efforts, Joanne.  And by the way, Joan Milas is up
 5  there watching out for us as well, spending a lot
 6  of time up there in the wee hours.  Joan, thank
 7  you as well.
 8      COMMISSIONER MILAS: We were together at
 9      4:00 in the morning.
10      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Do you know how rare
11  it is to find Joanne home on a Friday night?
12      COMMISSIONER MILAS: As opposed to me on a
13  Friday night that spends it at the State House?
14      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Thank you very much.
15  Next report, Citizens Advisory Committee.  Is
16  there anybody here?  How are you?
17      MR. SCHACTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
18  We had a very productive meeting.  We took the
19  opportunity of inviting Walter Palm, the current
20  laboratory manager in, and he gave us a view of
21  the past and, of course, an overview of the future
22  as the transition goes forward from old to new in
23  the laboratory area.  It was very, very
24  informative.  And, of course, Walter's 15 years of
25  service told us a lot, and we give him very, very
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 1  high marks for his efforts before, and we look
 2  forward to many years working with him.  But it
 3  was extremely a great opportunity at a time like
 4  this, as the transition goes forward, to have a
 5  firsthand view from the chief.  That's my report.
 6  Thank you.
 7      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Thank you very much.
 8  Thank you.  Next item, Item Number 7, Chairman's
 9  Report.  Very busy week for the Chairman -- it's
10  been a busy month, I should say.  I've spent a
11  great deal of this past month working with legal
12  counsel, Joe DeAngelis and Laurie Horridge
13  regarding the Wind Energy Development
14  Corporation's project in Coventry, our net
15  metering program.  There were tense meetings.  A
16  number of issues surfaced.  Laurie and Joe worked
17  very diligently to protect the Commissioners'
18  interests.  We're moving forward.
19      I don't know the exact date that we're
20  going to be turning the switch and generating
21  power, but our next meeting is going to be on
22  September the 20th because we're taking the summer
23  off.  But, if anything happens during that period
24  of time when we culminate all of the issues that
25  are still being worked on, everyone of you will be
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 1  notified.  I'm certain there's going to be some
 2  kind of -- I'm told there's going to be a press
 3  conference or a press release issued by the
 4  developer as he kicks off this project in the next
 5  three or four weeks, maybe, I'm not sure.  I'm
 6  certain that we will be invited.  Of course we'll
 7  invite all the commissioners as well, and we will
 8  apprise the Board on any matters of concern as
 9  soon as we know the climate regarding the final
10  resolution to all of the issues.
11      So, as I said, the next meeting is
12  September the 20th, and I want you to have a great
13  safe healthy summer, but before we adjourn, I
14  would like to say that -- just before we adjourn,
15  we're going to take a group photo.  I think we're
16  going to do it here.  Where is Jamie?  Jamie is
17  organizing this.  I don't know where she is.  Is
18  she in the room?
19      SECRETARY MARSHALL: No, she's just
20  walking in now.
21      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Okay.  So, what Jamie
22  is intending for us to do is to get a group photo
23  here, and then we're going to go over to the new
24  lab building.  We're going to cut a ribbon and
25  we're going to dedicate this building to our
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 1  former commissioner, the late Commissioner Len
 2  Walker.  His family will be here and then after
 3  that, we're going to -- in the operations building
 4  there's refreshments and some food.  So, let me
 5  just -- we have about two minutes left to adjourn
 6  the meeting.  Jamie?
 7      MS. SAMONS: So, we're actually going to
 8  do the group photo over in the new building.
 9      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: There's been a
10  change.  Like in the General Assembly, things
11  change very quickly around here.
12      MS. SAMONS: Because the light is so good
13  over there.
14      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: All right.  Well,
15  that's great.  That's fine with me.  So that
16  really concludes the Chairman's Report, and we'll
17  keep you apprised of everything that is happening
18  with Wind Energy.  And Laurie, again, thank you so
19  much for your efforts in helping to bring that to
20  a close.  Joe, you did great.  We know we can
21  always count on you.  Thank you.  Is there any new
22  business to come before the Board today?
23      (NO RESPONSE)
24      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: No new business.
25  Other business of any nature?  Commissioner
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 1  Kimball, do you have something?
 2      COMMISSIONER KIMBALL: At the last
 3  meeting, Mr. Chairman, we talked about perhaps
 4  visiting the site of -- the Coventry site.
 5      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Yes.
 6      COMMISSIONER KIMBALL: Has anything been
 7  arranged, or are we going to wait until all the
 8  details are worked out?
 9      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: What say you,
10  counselor?
11      MS. HORRIDGE: I guess we could arrange
12  for everyone to go out there.  I mean, I don't
13  know why you necessarily want to see it before
14  it's turnkey since that will probably happen in
15  the next month anyway.  It probably makes sense to
16  wait.
17      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Commissioner Kimball,
18  do you want to see it before we actually close it?
19      COMMISSIONER KIMBALL: No.
20      SECRETARY MARSHALL: I'll tell you what,
21  what I would suggest is that if you're interested
22  in going out to see the actual site, send an
23  e-mail to Karen Musumeci and, you know, roughly
24  when is the best time.  One of the things we might
25  run into is the fact that if it's scheduled for a
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 1  particular day, a lot of folks might be on
 2  vacation or whatever.  So, you know, we can -- not
 3  everyone has to go at the same time is what I was
 4  trying to get out.  If there are three or four or
 5  five of you and it's all different times, Rich
 6  Bernier and his team will be happy to take you
 7  down there because they know where everything is
 8  and they can ride you through, you know, the
 9  project, and we want to keep an eye on what's
10  going on down there anyway so --
11      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: So Richard and Tom
12  have been going on a pretty regular basis; right?
13  You guys have been going down?
14      MR. UVA: Rich has.
15      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: How often do you --
16  Rich?
17      MR. BERNIER: How often do we go down?
18      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Yeah, how often?
19      MR. BERNIER: Well, lately, not too often
20  because it's rough.
21      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Okay, but you
22  wouldn't mind going once a week anyway; right?
23      MR. BERNIER: Anytime.
24      COMMISSIONER KIMBALL: Can he just do a
25  drive-by or is it --
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 1      COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL: You can see them
 2  from 102, some of them.
 3      MR. BERNIER: You can just see just above
 4  the treetops.
 5      COMMISSIONER FARNUM: The road in is
 6  blocked off unless you're -- just see above the
 7  treetops Farnum.
 8      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Anybody want to go
 9  down next week at all?  Does anybody want to go
10  down?
11      MS. DeROCHE: Yeah.
12      MS. MILAS: Yeah.
13      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Okay, pick a day.
14  Pick a day.  Give me a day, we'll do it right now.
15      COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL: Well, right next
16  to the entrance to the whole project is this place
17  called the Sawmill Produce -- or they grow
18  vegetables and stuff.  It would make sense if
19  people wanted to go there is to meet there at a --
20  I think I'm pretty sure you can park in there, or
21  meet there at a particular day and time, and then
22  go in with Rich or Tom.
23      MS. HORRIDGE: Why don't we coordinate
24  that with the developer.
25      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Sure.  All right, so
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 1  what we'll do --
 2      SECRETARY MARSHALL: Next Wednesday or
 3  Thursday, maybe, we'll give it a try.
 4      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: We'll coordinate
 5  something.  Call everyone and we'll figure out
 6  just exactly how we're going to organize it, okay.
 7  We'll get it done next week.  Okay, great.  Any
 8  other new business?  Other business of any kind?
 9  No one?
10      (NO RESPONSE)
11      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Commissioner Bennett
12  moves that we adjourn; right?
13      COMMISSIONER BENNETT: Yes, sir.
14      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Commissioner Bennett
15  moves that we adjourn.  Seconded by Commissioner
16  Farnum.  All in favor of adjournment will say,
17  "Aye."
18      (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
19      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: Any opposed?
20      (NO RESPONSE)
21      CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA: None opposed.  We are
22  now adjourned.
23      (HEARING ADJOURNED AT 11:57 A.M.)
24  
25  
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 1           (HEARING COMMENCED AT 11:11 A.M.)
  


 2           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Yes, we have a
  


 3   quorum.  Good morning, everyone.  We will call the
  


 4   Narragansett Bay Commission Board of Commissioners
  


 5   meeting to order at 11:11 on June 21, 2016.
  


 6   Recognizing a quorum, have all of our members had
  


 7   an opportunity to review approval of the previous
  


 8   minutes?
  


 9           COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  So moved.
  


10           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I have a motion to
  


11   approve the previous minutes.
  


12           COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.
  


13           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Seconded by
  


14   Commissioner Montanari, Rotella and Milas.
  


15   Discussion on the previous minutes?
  


16           (NO RESPONSE)
  


17           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all
  


18   those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
  


19           (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
  


20           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Any opposed?
  


21           (NO RESPONSE)
  


22           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  And the motion
  


23   carries.  Thank you.  Minutes are approved.  All
  


24   right, Committee Reports and Action -- I'm sorry,
  


25   sorry.  I'm trying to rush here.  Item Number 3,







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
115 Phenix Avenue, Cranston, RI 02920 


www.alliedcourtreporters.com


NBC Board of Commissioners Meeting - June 21, 2016


4


  
 1   Executive Director's Report.  Mr. Secretary?
  


 2           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.
  


 3   Operations division the plants are turning out
  


 4   high quality effluent.  Our turbines have been
  


 5   running consistently well over the last month
  


 6   since we last met, and Interceptor Maintenance
  


 7   completed their annual inspection of the
  


 8   facilities associated with the hurricane barrier
  


 9   that's located further up Allens Avenue to make
  


10   sure that it's ready for the hurricane season.
  


11           You might be interested to know that the
  


12   equipment associated with the sewer system that we
  


13   actually operate is owned by the City of
  


14   Providence.  So we have made some minor repairs to
  


15   keep it operating.  Quite frankly, it needs to be
  


16   replaced.  We've been lobbying the city to do so
  


17   over the last few years to no avail.  We've also
  


18   gotten the Army Corps of Engineers involved.  I
  


19   believe Meg was at a meeting this morning, Meg
  


20   Goulet, and she's going to report back to me when
  


21   she gets done to see what this year's efforts
  


22   bring forth in terms of replacing a lot of the
  


23   mechanisms, the gates, the operators, the valving,
  


24   whatever.
  


25           In Engineering, we did respond to DEM's
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 1   comments on the Phase III report.  We've heard
  


 2   nothing from them since.  We're supposed to be
  


 3   scheduling a meeting to try to work out our
  


 4   differences.  In the meantime, we're moving ahead
  


 5   with the Phase III work in terms of survey and
  


 6   borings and preparing a lot of the expected
  


 7   standard spec sections and the like, and we're
  


 8   going to be doing -- we're also doing the
  


 9   hydraulic modeling and system to try to maximize
  


10   the effectiveness of the system that we will
  


11   design.
  


12           In addition, the Greenville Avenue Sewer
  


13   Project, which will be going up to pick up the
  


14   Citizens Bank complex as well as other homeowners
  


15   along the Greenville Avenue stretch, the survey is
  


16   done, the borings are underway, and all I can tell
  


17   you is there is a lot of rock in Greenville
  


18   Avenue.  So, we'll evaluate exactly what we're
  


19   going to be building while I believe we can design
  


20   it to be all served by gravity.  I'm beginning to
  


21   question whether that's the way we should go.  So
  


22   we might end up with a small pump station.  We'll
  


23   see what happens when the borings finally come in,
  


24   but we have three projects ready for bid this
  


25   summer.
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 1           Engineering and Construction will be
  


 2   working on that.  There are some action items
  


 3   before the CEO committee that will help us get
  


 4   ready to do that.  When those bids come in, they
  


 5   will come before you next fall; probably
  


 6   September, potentially the November meeting.
  


 7   Construction has been busy wrapping up the Water
  


 8   Quality Science Building Project.  You'll get a
  


 9   chance to see it today in about an hour or so, and
  


10   they've been doing the landscaping and a lot of
  


11   the cleanup work inside the building making sure
  


12   all the systems are being tested, and staff will
  


13   probably start moving across the street in phases
  


14   over the next couple of weeks.
  


15           In A&F, the FY-'16 budget ends in about
  


16   ten days, and we will finish under budget this
  


17   year.  The FY-'17 budget was brought before
  


18   finance today, most of you were here for that.
  


19   So, we'll ask the full Board to act on it in just
  


20   a few minutes.  We're beginning to prepare for the
  


21   audit for the FY-'16 fiscal year which, again,
  


22   closes in about two weeks, and that order will
  


23   come before you for consideration in September.
  


24   We're also working on all employee evaluations and
  


25   salary adjustments, and those are pending the
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 1   budget approval before we can implement any of
  


 2   those, but we're doing all the background work to
  


 3   be in a position to do that.
  


 4           Policy Planning has spent a lot of time
  


 5   reviewing the new draft permits that DEM has
  


 6   issued.  We have several comments and concerns and
  


 7   questions, and we have put them on notice that we
  


 8   have a number of the items that we want to rebut,
  


 9   and we're going to schedule a meeting with them to
  


10   sit down and go through each one to see what we
  


11   can work out before the final draft is issued for
  


12   public comment and full implementation.
  


13           Water quality sampling efforts have ramped
  


14   up for the summer with the warm weather arriving
  


15   and, you know, everyone has a renewed interest in
  


16   beaches and shellfishing.  The water quality
  


17   results have been excellent so far, so we want to
  


18   stay on top of that.  So we've worked very well
  


19   with DEM in terms of sharing that information with
  


20   them, and they're able to make much better calls
  


21   on beach closures and shellfish closures in terms
  


22   of when and the length of time each has to occur.
  


23           And in Executive, we're working with the
  


24   City of Providence.  They need some room to store
  


25   some road salt for the upcoming season, and
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 1   they're asking if they can use the Old Transfer
  


 2   Station that we acquired from them several years
  


 3   ago as a staging area for that.  So we're trying
  


 4   to work out the details of that with them.  We're
  


 5   trying to be good neighbors, and once in a while
  


 6   we need a favor from them so this would be
  


 7   something that, I think, is in our overall best
  


 8   interest.
  


 9           The General Assembly session is finally
  


10   over, it was a hectic one.  Joanne will have a
  


11   report for you in a little while.  You know that
  


12   we met last week on the wind turbines from Wind
  


13   Energy Development.  That resolution passed.
  


14   We're continuing to work through all the documents
  


15   that the lawyers are pouring over.  Hopefully,
  


16   we'll have signable contracts in the next few
  


17   weeks.  And we are also working with the solar
  


18   energy firm that you selected or you authorized us
  


19   to proceed with.  We seem to be making progress
  


20   slowly but surely, and we're still hopeful, but at
  


21   some point we're going to just give them a
  


22   drop-dead deadline, and either we're going to get
  


23   this done or we're not.
  


24           There was some activity up in the General
  


25   Assembly, budget articles and bills and everything
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 1   that could potentially have affected how that
  


 2   project played out, but I think we've gotten by
  


 3   all of that.  So that's pretty much what's been
  


 4   going on.  If you have any questions, I'll be
  


 5   happy to answer them.
  


 6           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  All the
  


 7   members have heard the report from the Executive
  


 8   Director.  Are there any questions or comments?
  


 9   Commissioner Burroughs?
  


10           COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Do you have any
  


11   insight on what's going to happen with the
  


12   stormwater issue and what that group is up to?
  


13           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  The whole
  


14   concept of having a regional entity handle the
  


15   stormwater is probably going to go by the wayside
  


16   at this point because all the different parties
  


17   had different opinions on how the stormwater
  


18   regional effort should proceed, and lack of an
  


19   agreement on what it all would involve -- sort of,
  


20   everyone moved back into their own sphere of
  


21   influence and they said, "You know what, we'll
  


22   just do it ourselves."  That's pretty much the way
  


23   it's going to play out.  DEM is now starting to
  


24   work with the communities to sign administrative
  


25   orders or, you know, whatever that they need to do
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 1   to make sure that they have some influence over
  


 2   when and how that work gets done.
  


 3           COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Did they ever
  


 4   reach any understanding of the cost?
  


 5           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Well, only very --
  


 6   only very generally.  I mean, they all understand
  


 7   now that it's going to cost a lot of money to get
  


 8   a program in place.  And by that, I mean, know
  


 9   where everything is, clean everything, make sure
  


10   that you have a handle on flows that are going to
  


11   be coming out of your pipes and the quality of the
  


12   water that's going to be coming out.  They only --
  


13   depending on the community, they have a pretty
  


14   good idea of whether it's going to cost them
  


15   millions, tens of millions, or hundreds of
  


16   millions of dollars, you know, to solve the
  


17   problem, but they don't really know exactly yet.
  


18           COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Thank you.
  


19           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No matter what, it's
  


20   going to be a very effective and efficient
  


21   program, no matter what.
  


22           COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Thank you.  I'm
  


23   reassured.
  


24           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Worrell?
  


25           COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  How in the world is
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 1   Providence ever going to address that issue?  I
  


 2   mean, they can't keep the streets swept now, never
  


 3   mind the --
  


 4           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Street sweeping is
  


 5   one of the components of the stormwater.
  


 6           COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Well, you see,
  


 7   that's the easiest way.
  


 8           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No, no, no.  The
  


 9   stormwater is going to wash away all the dirt,
  


10   litter, and they won't have to sweep.  It's a
  


11   cost-efficient undertaking.
  


12           COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Well, that's a
  


13   great scientific development.
  


14           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Listen, I'm in
  


15   complete agreement.  I'm in complete agreement.  I
  


16   don't know what's wrong with me today, I'm just --
  


17           COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  In answering Mr.
  


18   Burroughs' -- Professor Burroughs' question, your
  


19   answer is that nothing is going to happen; is that
  


20   right?
  


21           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Oh, no, I think
  


22   things will happen.  I just don't know at what
  


23   rate they'll happen and how effective what they're
  


24   going to end up doing will be.
  


25           COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  I'm not sure how
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 1   that's different, but that's a nice answer.
  


 2           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I try hard.
  


 3           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I think we should
  


 4   form another stakeholder's committee.
  


 5   Commissioner Carlino?
  


 6           COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Do you think that's
  


 7   at a state level or a city level?
  


 8           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I'm not sure I
  


 9   understand what you're --
  


10           COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  So they basically
  


11   said, "We're not going to -- we're not going to
  


12   worry about it this year."  Is the stormwater
  


13   issue, will it be -- do you think it's going to be
  


14   handled by the state or will they ask each city,
  


15   which they did years ago, to address it?
  


16           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Oh, no, each city
  


17   will have to address their own issue, but the
  


18   state has a role.  I mean, DEM oversees
  


19   everything -- all of those -- all the communities
  


20   in the state, all 39 cities and towns.  But the
  


21   state has another role in the form of the DOT who
  


22   also has to address all of their stormwater
  


23   issues.  But overseeing them is not DEM, it's EPA
  


24   and the Department of Justice because nothing was
  


25   happening, so the Feds stepped in.
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 1           COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Okay, thank you.
  


 2           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I'm sure it's going
  


 3   to be efficient.  Okay, other questions, comments
  


 4   regarding the Executive Director's Report?
  


 5           COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Mr. Chairman, I
  


 6   just have one question.
  


 7           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed with your
  


 8   question, Commissioner Bennett.
  


 9           COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  The reality
  


10   Commissioner Worrell brings up, it's reality.  I
  


11   mean, having been on the other side in Providence,
  


12   it's very difficult to reallocate resources to
  


13   things like this.  So, you know, typically what
  


14   I've seen your organization do in the past is kind
  


15   of be creative and do it yourself so it gets done.
  


16   So we can either talk about doing it and it never
  


17   gets done, or we do it ourselves.  So maybe in
  


18   your thought process moving forward -- we can't
  


19   wait for them.
  


20           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I agree.
  


21           COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Just a thought.
  


22           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I agree with you.
  


23   Okay, moving right along.  We have Committee
  


24   Reports and Action Items Resulting.  The first
  


25   committee reporting is the CEO Committee.
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 1   Commissioner MacQueen, do you have a report for us
  


 2   today?
  


 3           COMMISSIONER MACQUEEN:  Yes, I do,
  


 4   Chairman.
  


 5           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed.
  


 6           COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  We have four
  


 7   resolutions to Review.  The committee passed them
  


 8   all.  The first one was Review and Approval of
  


 9   Resolution 2016:15; Award of Contract 130.00
  


10   Fields Point Final Clarifier and Miscellaneous
  


11   Improvements.  Ray?
  


12           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Thank you.  This
  


13   project involves a number of improvements at the
  


14   Fields Point Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The
  


15   primary work is being done on the final
  


16   clarifiers.  And on three of those final
  


17   clarifiers, we're going to replace the scraper
  


18   mechanisms which are located at the bottom of the
  


19   tank.  We won't see them if there's water in the
  


20   tanks, of course, but on the empty tanks you can
  


21   see them.  It sort of moves all the activated
  


22   sledge that falls to the bottom of the tanks and
  


23   moves it to a central location for a
  


24   re-circulation process.
  


25           We're also going to make other
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 1   improvements in the clarifiers which include
  


 2   covering the effluent line that we call it, which
  


 3   is the channel on the outside perimeter of the
  


 4   tank that collects all the clarified effluent.
  


 5   The water is so clear that the light can penetrate
  


 6   it, and it creates algae growth which becomes a
  


 7   maintenance problem for us.  So we're going to
  


 8   cover that to, you know, minimize that.  We're
  


 9   also going to do some work that has to do -- they
  


10   have concrete stairs that are tending to erode
  


11   over there, so we're going to replace those with
  


12   aluminum stairs.  And there's some piping -- we're
  


13   going to change some rooftop HVAC units that need
  


14   to be replaced.
  


15           So it's kind of a mismashed contract of
  


16   all these different little things that we've
  


17   identified through the asset management program
  


18   that we have in place.  So, staff actually put
  


19   this contract together internally.  We didn't have
  


20   an outside consultant on this, so we did the
  


21   specs, we did the plans with our own forces.  We
  


22   received two bids on June 7th, and they're
  


23   contractors that are well-known to us, Hart
  


24   Engineering Corporation and Daniel O'Connell &
  


25   Sons.  They're great contractors.
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 1           Hart was the low bidder at 3.727 to 3.7
  


 2   million, just a little above.  That was about 12
  


 3   percent lower than the Daniel O'Connell bid.  So
  


 4   we checked with Hart to make sure that they were
  


 5   comfortable with their bid and they said they
  


 6   were.  So we decided to move forward with the
  


 7   project.  We, of course, checked their
  


 8   credentials, which we know well.  They are the
  


 9   lowest responsive and responsible bidder, and if
  


10   you approve awarding the contract to them, they
  


11   will have to get they're MBE/WBE plans and EEO
  


12   requirements approved by the Rhode Island
  


13   Department of Administration.  So, with that, we
  


14   ask your approval of Resolution 2016:15 as
  


15   outlined.
  


16           COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  I move passage.
  


17           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner MacQueen
  


18   moves passage of Resolution 2016:15, Water
  


19   Contract 130 -- 130.00 Fields Point Clarifier.
  


20           COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.
  


21           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner
  


22   Montanari seconds the motion.  Is there further
  


23   discussion on Resolution 2016:15?  Further
  


24   discussion?
  


25           (NO RESPONSE)
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 1           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
  


 2   those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
  


 3           (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
  


 4           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
  


 5   opposed?
  


 6           (NO RESPONSE)
  


 7           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
  


 8   opposed and the motion carries.  Further report?
  


 9   Commissioner MacQueen?
  


10           COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Yes.  Review and
  


11   Approval of Resolution 2016:16; Award of Contract
  


12   304.57RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
  


13   Consulting Services for 78-Inch Interceptor
  


14   Replacement, and I move to pass it.
  


15           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to
  


16   approve Resolution 2016:16.  Discussion?  Ray?
  


17           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  This resolution
  


18   and the next two, when we get to them, essentially
  


19   what their request for is assistance with
  


20   engineering consulting during construction.  So
  


21   during the bidding process, reviewing shop
  


22   drawings once the project gets awarded, doing some
  


23   specialty resident inspection.  All of these jobs
  


24   we're going to do the actual hard core resident
  


25   inspection ourselves with our own staff.  So that







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
115 Phenix Avenue, Cranston, RI 02920 


www.alliedcourtreporters.com


NBC Board of Commissioners Meeting - June 21, 2016


18


  
 1   just kind of sets the stage for each of the three.
  


 2   This particular one is with a company called
  


 3   Stantec.  We awarded a contract to them a couple
  


 4   of years ago to evaluate a 78-inch interceptor
  


 5   that takes the flow from the Providence River
  


 6   syphon, which starts on the east side of the
  


 7   Providence River just below the hurricane barrier,
  


 8   and takes it under the river to the west side
  


 9   where it then discharges into this pipe that we're
  


10   addressing today.
  


11           This pipe has some significant problems
  


12   with it -- along one 500-foot stretch of it.  The
  


13   rest of the pipe seems to be in pretty good shape.
  


14   We've had some deterioration with excessive
  


15   cracking and there's a sag in the pipe as well.
  


16   We really need to get out there and replace this.
  


17   What makes this job very difficult is it's right
  


18   alongside of Route 195 of the new project; all the
  


19   bridge abutments and everything.  So it will
  


20   require a fair amount of supportive excavation
  


21   activity which really adds to the cost, which is
  


22   estimated at 7.4 million.
  


23           Like I mentioned it, the job will be bid
  


24   this summer.  So, we'll come back to you with the
  


25   bid results and the final recommendation for award
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 1   to a contractor in the fall.  But, for now, we
  


 2   need the assistance of Stantec as we move into the
  


 3   bidding process, and that will also -- this effort
  


 4   will also carryover when a contractor is actually
  


 5   identified and we sign construction documents with
  


 6   them.  We've negotiated a ceiling price of
  


 7   $100,000 for this work for Stantec, and that's
  


 8   what is outlined in Resolution 2016:16, and we ask
  


 9   your approval.
  


10           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  So, we do
  


11   have a motion to approve Resolution 2016:16.  Was
  


12   that seconded by Commissioner Montanari?  It was.
  


13   Commissioner Farnum as well.  Is there further
  


14   discussion on the resolution?  Further discussion
  


15   or questions, comments?
  


16           (NO RESPONSE)
  


17           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
  


18   those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
  


19           (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
  


20           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
  


21   opposed?
  


22           (NO RESPONSE)
  


23           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
  


24   opposed and the motion carries.  Further new
  


25   business?
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 1           COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Review and
  


 2   Approval of Resolution 2016:17; Award of contract
  


 3   304.44RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
  


 4   Consulting Services for Moshassuck Valley
  


 5   Interceptor Replacement, and I move passage.  Is
  


 6   there a motion, Mr. Chairman?
  


 7           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to
  


 8   approve Resolution 2016:17, seconded by
  


 9   Commissioner Montanari and Commissioner Farnum.
  


10   Explanations, Director?
  


11           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  This project is
  


12   actually located in Central Falls.  It's the
  


13   section of the Moshassuck Valley Interceptor that
  


14   was constructed in the mid-1950s by the Blackstone
  


15   Valley District Sewer Commission, and it collects
  


16   combined stormwater and wastewater from Central
  


17   Falls, Lincoln and Pawtucket.  We have problems
  


18   with this pipe based on video surveys and actual
  


19   in-person inspections.  There are cracks along the
  


20   pipe.  The pipe is pretty damaged, and we need to
  


21   replace -- it's about 3,000 feet of this pipe that
  


22   is going to be replaced, and we're going to
  


23   replace it with 24-inch PVC pipe.  So it will be
  


24   brand new.
  


25           We do get some surcharging in this area,
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 1   which means the flow backs up because of the sags
  


 2   in the pipe.  The soils are bad out there, so
  


 3   we've had a robust geotechnical design effort
  


 4   associated with this design.  Louis Berger Group
  


 5   is the designer on this, but Paul Aldinger &
  


 6   Associates is their subcontractor, and he's the
  


 7   one that's been doing all of the supportive
  


 8   excavation and supportive pipe work.  We estimate
  


 9   that this project will probably cost in the $5
  


10   million range, but we'll find out this summer when
  


11   we put it out to bid.
  


12           And, again, we'll bring back the bid
  


13   results to you with the recommendation in the fall
  


14   that will be the September meeting.  Potentially,
  


15   or it will be the meeting following that.  But, in
  


16   the meantime, we're looking for a contract award
  


17   to Berger to help us again with assistance during
  


18   bidding, answering questions, doing shop drawing
  


19   reviews and geotechnical inspections once the work
  


20   begins, and we've negotiated a cost ceiling of
  


21   $150,000 for these services, and that's all
  


22   contained in Resolution 2016:17, and we ask your
  


23   approval of that.
  


24           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to
  


25   approve Resolution 2016:17, seconded by
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 1   Commissioner Montanari.  Is there a discussion or
  


 2   comments regarding the resolution?
  


 3           (NO RESPONSE)
  


 4           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all
  


 5   those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
  


 6           (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
  


 7           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
  


 8   opposed?
  


 9           (NO RESPONSE)
  


10           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
  


11   opposed and the motion carries.  Further report,
  


12   Commissioner MacQueen?
  


13           COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Review and
  


14   Approval of Resolution 2016:18; Award of Contract
  


15   109.08RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical
  


16   Consulting Services for Fields Point Blower
  


17   Improvements Phase II, and I move to passage.
  


18           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I have a motion to
  


19   approve Resolution 2016:18, seconded by
  


20   Commissioner Montanari.  Mr. Secretary?
  


21           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes, this is a
  


22   continuing project that we probably started about
  


23   two years ago now when we had some issues with the
  


24   new turbo blowers that we had installed when we
  


25   upgraded the treatment plant.  Their reliability
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 1   came into question.  We went out for an emergency
  


 2   contract and purchased two of the more traditional
  


 3   technology blowers called centrifugal blowers.
  


 4   Those are installed and now we have that whole
  


 5   array of blower capacity available to us to keep
  


 6   the process running.  We lose aeration, we lose
  


 7   the process and we lose treatment, and we violate
  


 8   our permit.
  


 9           So this is a long-term fix that will
  


10   dovetail with what we already have in place, and
  


11   will provide some additional assurance that we'll
  


12   always have the air going into the treatment
  


13   process that we need.  CDM Smith has been the
  


14   designer on this.  They've done a really good job,
  


15   and we're asking for a contract that we can enter
  


16   into with them in the amount of $468,000, which
  


17   will provide assistance during bidding, shop
  


18   drawing review, O&M manual presentation, startup
  


19   training as well as limited inspection, that is
  


20   the specialty inspection that we'll encounter in
  


21   terms of electrical and instrumentation-type
  


22   efforts.  We'll do most of the resident inspection
  


23   ourselves.
  


24           This project is estimated to cost about
  


25   4.7 million.  So the engineering fee for this job,
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 1   when you compare it to the bid price or the
  


 2   expected bid price of 4.7 million to the others,
  


 3   the difference is this is much more complex.  The
  


 4   pipe jobs that we just talked about are more
  


 5   straightforward.  There is not a lot of technical
  


 6   review, but there is some that needs to be done.
  


 7   There were so many other disciplines that are
  


 8   involved in a project like this that, you know,
  


 9   require additional scrutiny and evaluation.
  


10   That's the reason why proportionally the fee is
  


11   higher.  I wanted to explain that for you.  That's
  


12   all included in Resolution 2016:18, and we ask
  


13   your approval.
  


14           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion and
  


15   a second to approve Resolution 2016:18.  Are there
  


16   any comments, questions, regarding the matter?
  


17           (NO RESPONSE)
  


18           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
  


19   those that are in favor of approval will say,
  


20   "Aye."
  


21           (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
  


22           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
  


23   opposed?
  


24           (NO RESPONSE)
  


25           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
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 1   opposed and the motion carries.  Commissioner
  


 2   MacQueen, further report?
  


 3           COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  That's all I have,
  


 4   Chairman.
  


 5           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.
  


 6   Next committee reporting is the Finance Committee.
  


 7   Finance Committee Chair, Commissioner Andrade is
  


 8   unavailable today.  The chairman chaired the
  


 9   finance committee meeting.  There are two matters
  


10   that need consideration by the Board.  The first
  


11   matter is Review and Approval of Resolution
  


12   2016:19; Narragansett Bay Commission Fiscal Year
  


13   2017 Operating Budget.  Is there anyone who does
  


14   not have a copy of this document?  Karen, are you
  


15   going to do an overview, or does the Board want an
  


16   overview?  I don't know who was here and who was
  


17   not here during the budget discussion.
  


18           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  There were twelve
  


19   commissioners that were here during that budget
  


20   discussion.  I don't know if Karen just wants to
  


21   give a real quick recap.
  


22           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  For the record,
  


23   Karen, do you want to give some highlights?
  


24           MS. GIEBINK:  Sure.  Good morning.  This
  


25   is the fiscal year 2017 operating budget, and
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 1   there's a lot of information in here.  Overall,
  


 2   we're looking at a 2.5 percent increase in the
  


 3   budget over last year's levels.  There are two
  


 4   additional FTEs included in the budget.  Other
  


 5   noteworthy items are that there are a number of
  


 6   impacts that the projects that are anticipated
  


 7   being completed in fiscal year 2017 will have on
  


 8   this years operating budget, and they're basically
  


 9   advantageous to NBC, and those are lighted in the
  


10   budget document as well.
  


11           There is no anticipated borrowing in next
  


12   years budget, which I'm very sad about.  But we're
  


13   gearing up for Phase III, there was a little bit
  


14   of a respite there.  Those are the highlights.
  


15   There was one change to the resolution under Item
  


16   8, which is new language that was inserted into
  


17   the resolution this year, and I'd be happy to
  


18   answer any questions if you have any.
  


19           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, most of the
  


20   commissioners were here during the presentation of
  


21   the budget, but are there any questions regarding
  


22   fiscal year 2017 budget document?  Of course the
  


23   Executive Director and Karen are available at all
  


24   times as you go through this document.  If you
  


25   have any questions, just feel free to give a call.
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 1   Ray?
  


 2           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  If you want to know
  


 3   what the actual resolution reads, if you go to
  


 4   your budget document and go to the last tab, the
  


 5   Supporting Schedules, in the first three pages,
  


 6   which is 221, 222 and 223, that's actually what
  


 7   you'll be approving or not, depending on your
  


 8   choice in this resolution.
  


 9           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  The Chairman
  


10   moves we approve Resolution 2016:19.  Seconded by
  


11   Commissioner Lemont, Commissioner Kimball,
  


12   Commissioner Carlino.  Discussion on the document?
  


13   Or discussion on the resolution, I should say.
  


14           (NO RESPONSE)
  


15           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
  


16   those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
  


17           (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
  


18           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
  


19   opposed?
  


20           (NO RESPONSE)
  


21           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
  


22   opposed and the motion carries.  Other item is
  


23   Item B, which is Review and Approval of Resolution
  


24   2016:20; which is Recommendation for Use of the
  


25   Environmental Enforcement Funds.  The resolution
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 1   provides for a -- providing what?
  


 2           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  $2,500.
  


 3           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  $2,500 to the Len
  


 4   Walker Memorial Scholarship Fund for -- this is a
  


 5   matter which has been near and dear to our late
  


 6   colleague, Mike Salvatore.  We've done this
  


 7   annually, and the Chairman moves that we approve
  


 8   Resolution 2016:20, and it's seconded by
  


 9   Commissioner Milas, MacQueen, Montanari, Burroughs
  


10   Lemont and Kimball.  Discussion on the matter?
  


11           (NO RESPONSE)
  


12           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
  


13   those that are in favor will say, "Aye."
  


14           (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
  


15           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
  


16   opposed?
  


17           (NO RESPONSE)
  


18           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
  


19   opposed, and the motion carries.  Moving right
  


20   along, Personnel Committee.  Commissioner
  


21   Campbell?
  


22           COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  The Personnel
  


23   Committee met and we approved amendments to the
  


24   personnel plan, and they included a list of
  


25   reclassifications and the creation of two new
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 1   positions, and they are all included in the 2017
  


 2   budget.
  


 3           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  You should all have a
  


 4   copy of this that was provided to you, which is
  


 5   now made a part of the 2017 fiscal document.  I
  


 6   don't think approval is necessary.
  


 7           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  It's not.
  


 8           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  It does not need a
  


 9   motion on that.  Next committee reporting is Long
  


10   Range Planning.
  


11           COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Long Range Planning
  


12   did not meet.
  


13           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No meeting, Long
  


14   Range Planning.  Rules & Regulations did not meet.
  


15   Ad Hoc on Ethics did not meet.  Executive
  


16   Committee has not met.  Compensation Committee has
  


17   not met.  Legislative Report, Joanne?
  


18           MS. MACERONI:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  As the
  


19   Executive Director noted, the General Assembly
  


20   recessed this Saturday.  This is a preliminary
  


21   report that you have on your website until I'm
  


22   able to determine what actually has finally come
  


23   out of the session as we go forward.  There are
  


24   several bills that we were actively involved with
  


25   which I just wanted to make note to you.  The







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
115 Phenix Avenue, Cranston, RI 02920 


www.alliedcourtreporters.com


NBC Board of Commissioners Meeting - June 21, 2016


30


  
 1   first one is Article II of the budget.  This has
  


 2   to do with the Public Finance Management Board and
  


 3   Debt Management.  It calls for an affordability
  


 4   study of all agencies within the state and
  


 5   municipalities.  And the study will be including
  


 6   recommended limits for debt capacity for each
  


 7   entity.
  


 8           As you may recall, there were other bills
  


 9   out there that made this limit a mandatory limit,
  


10   which we had grave concerns about.  So we're
  


11   relieved to see that this is just a recommended
  


12   limit, which we will be getting.  In addition,
  


13   with regard to Article II, this final article
  


14   contains several deadlines which were proposed by
  


15   the Narragansett Bay Commission to give the
  


16   reporting entities a more realistic time frame to
  


17   ensure their compliance.  So we were very happy
  


18   that the General Treasurer and the General
  


19   Assembly agreed with our proposals.
  


20           The next Bill, H-8354, this bill takes the
  


21   place of Article XVIII, and it has to do with
  


22   renewable energy and net metering.  Again, the
  


23   Narragansett Bay Commission proposed the extension
  


24   of two deadlines.  The first being the December
  


25   31st, 2016 deadline which was for grandfathering
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 1   remote net metered systems eligible to receive the
  


 2   distribution credit.  They did change that and
  


 3   they extended it to December of 2018, which we
  


 4   were very happy that they did that.  And the
  


 5   second deadline that we asked for an extension was
  


 6   January 2040.  That's the date that net metering
  


 7   credit would start to be reduced for
  


 8   non-grandfathered projects.  That deadline was
  


 9   extended to 2050, so we were very happy with that
  


10   also.
  


11           And, last, but not least, H-7511 sub A and
  


12   sub B, as you know, we did get involved in the
  


13   drone issue.  We have concerns about drones flying
  


14   over our facilities and the possible damage they
  


15   could do.  There is a drone commission as well as
  


16   there were several bills out there, including
  


17   7511.  That's the last -- that's the only bill
  


18   that actually made it through.  What it does is it
  


19   grants exclusive authority to regulate drones to
  


20   the State of Rhode Island and the Rhode Island
  


21   Airport Corporation.  We will be working hard with
  


22   the drone commission and the state as they develop
  


23   the regulations to ensure that the concerns of all
  


24   wastewater treatment facilities are addressed.
  


25           The rest of the report contains all the
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 1   bills that did not pass that we were following,
  


 2   and I am happy to say that all the bills that we
  


 3   opposed did not make it through.  So, as of now, I
  


 4   think we had a good session.  I'll know more in
  


 5   the next couple of weeks, but that's my report for
  


 6   today.
  


 7           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  The mere sight of you
  


 8   up there, Joanne, strikes fear into the heart of
  


 9   the legislation.
  


10           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Mr. Chairman, if I
  


11   could, I want the Board to know just how many
  


12   hours and how hard and how many headaches Joanne
  


13   incurred over this General Assembly session,
  


14   especially in the last several days.  She was
  


15   literally home on a Friday night and in the middle
  


16   of the night got up, I believe she contacted one
  


17   of our commissioners, as a matter of fact.  It was
  


18   like two or three in the morning you went over
  


19   there or something crazy like that because a bill
  


20   surfaced out of nowhere.  I mean, it is just -- I
  


21   mean, it's amazing what she has done, and we
  


22   should really thank her because we wouldn't be in
  


23   the position that we're in if she hadn't been up
  


24   there as much as she did.  Thank you, Joanne.
  


25           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I want to add that
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 1   it's very obvious when you go into the building,
  


 2   the high amount of respect by all the legislatures
  


 3   there they have for Joanne.  We appreciate your
  


 4   efforts, Joanne.  And by the way, Joan Milas is up
  


 5   there watching out for us as well, spending a lot
  


 6   of time up there in the wee hours.  Joan, thank
  


 7   you as well.
  


 8           COMMISSIONER MILAS:  We were together at
  


 9   4:00 in the morning.
  


10           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Do you know how rare
  


11   it is to find Joanne home on a Friday night?
  


12           COMMISSIONER MILAS:  As opposed to me on a
  


13   Friday night that spends it at the State House?
  


14           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.
  


15   Next report, Citizens Advisory Committee.  Is
  


16   there anybody here?  How are you?
  


17           MR. SCHACTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  


18   We had a very productive meeting.  We took the
  


19   opportunity of inviting Walter Palm, the current
  


20   laboratory manager in, and he gave us a view of
  


21   the past and, of course, an overview of the future
  


22   as the transition goes forward from old to new in
  


23   the laboratory area.  It was very, very
  


24   informative.  And, of course, Walter's 15 years of
  


25   service told us a lot, and we give him very, very
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 1   high marks for his efforts before, and we look
  


 2   forward to many years working with him.  But it
  


 3   was extremely a great opportunity at a time like
  


 4   this, as the transition goes forward, to have a
  


 5   firsthand view from the chief.  That's my report.
  


 6   Thank you.
  


 7           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.
  


 8   Thank you.  Next item, Item Number 7, Chairman's
  


 9   Report.  Very busy week for the Chairman -- it's
  


10   been a busy month, I should say.  I've spent a
  


11   great deal of this past month working with legal
  


12   counsel, Joe DeAngelis and Laurie Horridge
  


13   regarding the Wind Energy Development
  


14   Corporation's project in Coventry, our net
  


15   metering program.  There were tense meetings.  A
  


16   number of issues surfaced.  Laurie and Joe worked
  


17   very diligently to protect the Commissioners'
  


18   interests.  We're moving forward.
  


19           I don't know the exact date that we're
  


20   going to be turning the switch and generating
  


21   power, but our next meeting is going to be on
  


22   September the 20th because we're taking the summer
  


23   off.  But, if anything happens during that period
  


24   of time when we culminate all of the issues that
  


25   are still being worked on, everyone of you will be
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 1   notified.  I'm certain there's going to be some
  


 2   kind of -- I'm told there's going to be a press
  


 3   conference or a press release issued by the
  


 4   developer as he kicks off this project in the next
  


 5   three or four weeks, maybe, I'm not sure.  I'm
  


 6   certain that we will be invited.  Of course we'll
  


 7   invite all the commissioners as well, and we will
  


 8   apprise the Board on any matters of concern as
  


 9   soon as we know the climate regarding the final
  


10   resolution to all of the issues.
  


11           So, as I said, the next meeting is
  


12   September the 20th, and I want you to have a great
  


13   safe healthy summer, but before we adjourn, I
  


14   would like to say that -- just before we adjourn,
  


15   we're going to take a group photo.  I think we're
  


16   going to do it here.  Where is Jamie?  Jamie is
  


17   organizing this.  I don't know where she is.  Is
  


18   she in the room?
  


19           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  No, she's just
  


20   walking in now.
  


21           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  So, what Jamie
  


22   is intending for us to do is to get a group photo
  


23   here, and then we're going to go over to the new
  


24   lab building.  We're going to cut a ribbon and
  


25   we're going to dedicate this building to our
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 1   former commissioner, the late Commissioner Len
  


 2   Walker.  His family will be here and then after
  


 3   that, we're going to -- in the operations building
  


 4   there's refreshments and some food.  So, let me
  


 5   just -- we have about two minutes left to adjourn
  


 6   the meeting.  Jamie?
  


 7           MS. SAMONS:  So, we're actually going to
  


 8   do the group photo over in the new building.
  


 9           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There's been a
  


10   change.  Like in the General Assembly, things
  


11   change very quickly around here.
  


12           MS. SAMONS:  Because the light is so good
  


13   over there.
  


14           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  Well,
  


15   that's great.  That's fine with me.  So that
  


16   really concludes the Chairman's Report, and we'll
  


17   keep you apprised of everything that is happening
  


18   with Wind Energy.  And Laurie, again, thank you so
  


19   much for your efforts in helping to bring that to
  


20   a close.  Joe, you did great.  We know we can
  


21   always count on you.  Thank you.  Is there any new
  


22   business to come before the Board today?
  


23           (NO RESPONSE)
  


24           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No new business.
  


25   Other business of any nature?  Commissioner
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 1   Kimball, do you have something?
  


 2           COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  At the last
  


 3   meeting, Mr. Chairman, we talked about perhaps
  


 4   visiting the site of -- the Coventry site.
  


 5           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Yes.
  


 6           COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  Has anything been
  


 7   arranged, or are we going to wait until all the
  


 8   details are worked out?
  


 9           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  What say you,
  


10   counselor?
  


11           MS. HORRIDGE:  I guess we could arrange
  


12   for everyone to go out there.  I mean, I don't
  


13   know why you necessarily want to see it before
  


14   it's turnkey since that will probably happen in
  


15   the next month anyway.  It probably makes sense to
  


16   wait.
  


17           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Kimball,
  


18   do you want to see it before we actually close it?
  


19           COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  No.
  


20           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I'll tell you what,
  


21   what I would suggest is that if you're interested
  


22   in going out to see the actual site, send an
  


23   e-mail to Karen Musumeci and, you know, roughly
  


24   when is the best time.  One of the things we might
  


25   run into is the fact that if it's scheduled for a
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 1   particular day, a lot of folks might be on
  


 2   vacation or whatever.  So, you know, we can -- not
  


 3   everyone has to go at the same time is what I was
  


 4   trying to get out.  If there are three or four or
  


 5   five of you and it's all different times, Rich
  


 6   Bernier and his team will be happy to take you
  


 7   down there because they know where everything is
  


 8   and they can ride you through, you know, the
  


 9   project, and we want to keep an eye on what's
  


10   going on down there anyway so --
  


11           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So Richard and Tom
  


12   have been going on a pretty regular basis; right?
  


13   You guys have been going down?
  


14           MR. UVA:  Rich has.
  


15           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  How often do you --
  


16   Rich?
  


17           MR. BERNIER:  How often do we go down?
  


18           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Yeah, how often?
  


19           MR. BERNIER:  Well, lately, not too often
  


20   because it's rough.
  


21           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Okay, but you
  


22   wouldn't mind going once a week anyway; right?
  


23           MR. BERNIER:  Anytime.
  


24           COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  Can he just do a
  


25   drive-by or is it --
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 1           COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  You can see them
  


 2   from 102, some of them.
  


 3           MR. BERNIER:  You can just see just above
  


 4   the treetops.
  


 5           COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  The road in is
  


 6   blocked off unless you're -- just see above the
  


 7   treetops Farnum.
  


 8           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Anybody want to go
  


 9   down next week at all?  Does anybody want to go
  


10   down?
  


11           MS. DeROCHE:  Yeah.
  


12           MS. MILAS:  Yeah.
  


13           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, pick a day.
  


14   Pick a day.  Give me a day, we'll do it right now.
  


15           COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  Well, right next
  


16   to the entrance to the whole project is this place
  


17   called the Sawmill Produce -- or they grow
  


18   vegetables and stuff.  It would make sense if
  


19   people wanted to go there is to meet there at a --
  


20   I think I'm pretty sure you can park in there, or
  


21   meet there at a particular day and time, and then
  


22   go in with Rich or Tom.
  


23           MS. HORRIDGE:  Why don't we coordinate
  


24   that with the developer.
  


25           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Sure.  All right, so
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 1   what we'll do --
  


 2           SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Next Wednesday or
  


 3   Thursday, maybe, we'll give it a try.
  


 4           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We'll coordinate
  


 5   something.  Call everyone and we'll figure out
  


 6   just exactly how we're going to organize it, okay.
  


 7   We'll get it done next week.  Okay, great.  Any
  


 8   other new business?  Other business of any kind?
  


 9   No one?
  


10           (NO RESPONSE)
  


11           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Bennett
  


12   moves that we adjourn; right?
  


13           COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Yes, sir.
  


14           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Bennett
  


15   moves that we adjourn.  Seconded by Commissioner
  


16   Farnum.  All in favor of adjournment will say,
  


17   "Aye."
  


18           (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
  


19           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Any opposed?
  


20           (NO RESPONSE)
  


21           CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  None opposed.  We are
  


22   now adjourned.
  


23           (HEARING ADJOURNED AT 11:57 A.M.)
  


24
  


25
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 3
  


 4           I, SALLY BRASSARD, do hereby certify that
  


 5   the foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete
  


 6   transcript of my notes taken at the above-entitled
  


 7   proceeding.
  


 8           IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
  


 9   hand this 5th day of July, 2016.
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           1                 (HEARING COMMENCED AT 11:11 A.M.)



           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Yes, we have a



           3         quorum.  Good morning, everyone.  We will call the



           4         Narragansett Bay Commission Board of Commissioners



           5         meeting to order at 11:11 on June 21, 2016.



           6         Recognizing a quorum, have all of our members had



           7         an opportunity to review approval of the previous



           8         minutes?



           9                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  So moved.



          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I have a motion to



          11         approve the previous minutes.



          12                 COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.



          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Seconded by



          14         Commissioner Montanari, Rotella and Milas.



          15         Discussion on the previous minutes?



          16                 (NO RESPONSE)



          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all



          18         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."



          19                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)



          20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Any opposed?



          21                 (NO RESPONSE)



          22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  And the motion



          23         carries.  Thank you.  Minutes are approved.  All



          24         right, Committee Reports and Action -- I'm sorry,



          25         sorry.  I'm trying to rush here.  Item Number 3,
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           1         Executive Director's Report.  Mr. Secretary?



           2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.



           3         Operations division the plants are turning out



           4         high quality effluent.  Our turbines have been



           5         running consistently well over the last month



           6         since we last met, and Interceptor Maintenance



           7         completed their annual inspection of the



           8         facilities associated with the hurricane barrier



           9         that's located further up Allens Avenue to make



          10         sure that it's ready for the hurricane season.



          11                 You might be interested to know that the



          12         equipment associated with the sewer system that we



          13         actually operate is owned by the City of



          14         Providence.  So we have made some minor repairs to



          15         keep it operating.  Quite frankly, it needs to be



          16         replaced.  We've been lobbying the city to do so



          17         over the last few years to no avail.  We've also



          18         gotten the Army Corps of Engineers involved.  I



          19         believe Meg was at a meeting this morning, Meg



          20         Goulet, and she's going to report back to me when



          21         she gets done to see what this year's efforts



          22         bring forth in terms of replacing a lot of the



          23         mechanisms, the gates, the operators, the valving,



          24         whatever.



          25                 In Engineering, we did respond to DEM's
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           1         comments on the Phase III report.  We've heard



           2         nothing from them since.  We're supposed to be



           3         scheduling a meeting to try to work out our



           4         differences.  In the meantime, we're moving ahead



           5         with the Phase III work in terms of survey and



           6         borings and preparing a lot of the expected



           7         standard spec sections and the like, and we're



           8         going to be doing -- we're also doing the



           9         hydraulic modeling and system to try to maximize



          10         the effectiveness of the system that we will



          11         design.



          12                 In addition, the Greenville Avenue Sewer



          13         Project, which will be going up to pick up the



          14         Citizens Bank complex as well as other homeowners



          15         along the Greenville Avenue stretch, the survey is



          16         done, the borings are underway, and all I can tell



          17         you is there is a lot of rock in Greenville



          18         Avenue.  So, we'll evaluate exactly what we're



          19         going to be building while I believe we can design



          20         it to be all served by gravity.  I'm beginning to



          21         question whether that's the way we should go.  So



          22         we might end up with a small pump station.  We'll



          23         see what happens when the borings finally come in,



          24         but we have three projects ready for bid this



          25         summer.
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           1                 Engineering and Construction will be



           2         working on that.  There are some action items



           3         before the CEO committee that will help us get



           4         ready to do that.  When those bids come in, they



           5         will come before you next fall; probably



           6         September, potentially the November meeting.



           7         Construction has been busy wrapping up the Water



           8         Quality Science Building Project.  You'll get a



           9         chance to see it today in about an hour or so, and



          10         they've been doing the landscaping and a lot of



          11         the cleanup work inside the building making sure



          12         all the systems are being tested, and staff will



          13         probably start moving across the street in phases



          14         over the next couple of weeks.



          15                 In A&F, the FY-'16 budget ends in about



          16         ten days, and we will finish under budget this



          17         year.  The FY-'17 budget was brought before



          18         finance today, most of you were here for that.



          19         So, we'll ask the full Board to act on it in just



          20         a few minutes.  We're beginning to prepare for the



          21         audit for the FY-'16 fiscal year which, again,



          22         closes in about two weeks, and that order will



          23         come before you for consideration in September.



          24         We're also working on all employee evaluations and



          25         salary adjustments, and those are pending the
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           1         budget approval before we can implement any of



           2         those, but we're doing all the background work to



           3         be in a position to do that.



           4                 Policy Planning has spent a lot of time



           5         reviewing the new draft permits that DEM has



           6         issued.  We have several comments and concerns and



           7         questions, and we have put them on notice that we



           8         have a number of the items that we want to rebut,



           9         and we're going to schedule a meeting with them to



          10         sit down and go through each one to see what we



          11         can work out before the final draft is issued for



          12         public comment and full implementation.



          13                 Water quality sampling efforts have ramped



          14         up for the summer with the warm weather arriving



          15         and, you know, everyone has a renewed interest in



          16         beaches and shellfishing.  The water quality



          17         results have been excellent so far, so we want to



          18         stay on top of that.  So we've worked very well



          19         with DEM in terms of sharing that information with



          20         them, and they're able to make much better calls



          21         on beach closures and shellfish closures in terms



          22         of when and the length of time each has to occur.



          23                 And in Executive, we're working with the



          24         City of Providence.  They need some room to store



          25         some road salt for the upcoming season, and
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           1         they're asking if they can use the Old Transfer



           2         Station that we acquired from them several years



           3         ago as a staging area for that.  So we're trying



           4         to work out the details of that with them.  We're



           5         trying to be good neighbors, and once in a while



           6         we need a favor from them so this would be



           7         something that, I think, is in our overall best



           8         interest.



           9                 The General Assembly session is finally



          10         over, it was a hectic one.  Joanne will have a



          11         report for you in a little while.  You know that



          12         we met last week on the wind turbines from Wind



          13         Energy Development.  That resolution passed.



          14         We're continuing to work through all the documents



          15         that the lawyers are pouring over.  Hopefully,



          16         we'll have signable contracts in the next few



          17         weeks.  And we are also working with the solar



          18         energy firm that you selected or you authorized us



          19         to proceed with.  We seem to be making progress



          20         slowly but surely, and we're still hopeful, but at



          21         some point we're going to just give them a



          22         drop-dead deadline, and either we're going to get



          23         this done or we're not.



          24                 There was some activity up in the General



          25         Assembly, budget articles and bills and everything
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           1         that could potentially have affected how that



           2         project played out, but I think we've gotten by



           3         all of that.  So that's pretty much what's been



           4         going on.  If you have any questions, I'll be



           5         happy to answer them.



           6                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  All the



           7         members have heard the report from the Executive



           8         Director.  Are there any questions or comments?



           9         Commissioner Burroughs?



          10                 COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Do you have any



          11         insight on what's going to happen with the



          12         stormwater issue and what that group is up to?



          13                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  The whole



          14         concept of having a regional entity handle the



          15         stormwater is probably going to go by the wayside



          16         at this point because all the different parties



          17         had different opinions on how the stormwater



          18         regional effort should proceed, and lack of an



          19         agreement on what it all would involve -- sort of,



          20         everyone moved back into their own sphere of



          21         influence and they said, "You know what, we'll



          22         just do it ourselves."  That's pretty much the way



          23         it's going to play out.  DEM is now starting to



          24         work with the communities to sign administrative



          25         orders or, you know, whatever that they need to do
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           1         to make sure that they have some influence over



           2         when and how that work gets done.



           3                 COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Did they ever



           4         reach any understanding of the cost?



           5                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Well, only very --



           6         only very generally.  I mean, they all understand



           7         now that it's going to cost a lot of money to get



           8         a program in place.  And by that, I mean, know



           9         where everything is, clean everything, make sure



          10         that you have a handle on flows that are going to



          11         be coming out of your pipes and the quality of the



          12         water that's going to be coming out.  They only --



          13         depending on the community, they have a pretty



          14         good idea of whether it's going to cost them



          15         millions, tens of millions, or hundreds of



          16         millions of dollars, you know, to solve the



          17         problem, but they don't really know exactly yet.



          18                 COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Thank you.



          19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No matter what, it's



          20         going to be a very effective and efficient



          21         program, no matter what.



          22                 COMMISSIONER BURROUGHS:  Thank you.  I'm



          23         reassured.



          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Worrell?



          25                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  How in the world is
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           1         Providence ever going to address that issue?  I



           2         mean, they can't keep the streets swept now, never



           3         mind the --



           4                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Street sweeping is



           5         one of the components of the stormwater.



           6                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Well, you see,



           7         that's the easiest way.



           8                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No, no, no.  The



           9         stormwater is going to wash away all the dirt,



          10         litter, and they won't have to sweep.  It's a



          11         cost-efficient undertaking.



          12                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Well, that's a



          13         great scientific development.



          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Listen, I'm in



          15         complete agreement.  I'm in complete agreement.  I



          16         don't know what's wrong with me today, I'm just --



          17                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  In answering Mr.



          18         Burroughs' -- Professor Burroughs' question, your



          19         answer is that nothing is going to happen; is that



          20         right?



          21                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Oh, no, I think



          22         things will happen.  I just don't know at what



          23         rate they'll happen and how effective what they're



          24         going to end up doing will be.



          25                 COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  I'm not sure how
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           1         that's different, but that's a nice answer.



           2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I try hard.



           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I think we should



           4         form another stakeholder's committee.



           5         Commissioner Carlino?



           6                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Do you think that's



           7         at a state level or a city level?



           8                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I'm not sure I



           9         understand what you're --



          10                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  So they basically



          11         said, "We're not going to -- we're not going to



          12         worry about it this year."  Is the stormwater



          13         issue, will it be -- do you think it's going to be



          14         handled by the state or will they ask each city,



          15         which they did years ago, to address it?



          16                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Oh, no, each city



          17         will have to address their own issue, but the



          18         state has a role.  I mean, DEM oversees



          19         everything -- all of those -- all the communities



          20         in the state, all 39 cities and towns.  But the



          21         state has another role in the form of the DOT who



          22         also has to address all of their stormwater



          23         issues.  But overseeing them is not DEM, it's EPA



          24         and the Department of Justice because nothing was



          25         happening, so the Feds stepped in.
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           1                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Okay, thank you.



           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I'm sure it's going



           3         to be efficient.  Okay, other questions, comments



           4         regarding the Executive Director's Report?



           5                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Mr. Chairman, I



           6         just have one question.



           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed with your



           8         question, Commissioner Bennett.



           9                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  The reality



          10         Commissioner Worrell brings up, it's reality.  I



          11         mean, having been on the other side in Providence,



          12         it's very difficult to reallocate resources to



          13         things like this.  So, you know, typically what



          14         I've seen your organization do in the past is kind



          15         of be creative and do it yourself so it gets done.



          16         So we can either talk about doing it and it never



          17         gets done, or we do it ourselves.  So maybe in



          18         your thought process moving forward -- we can't



          19         wait for them.



          20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I agree.



          21                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Just a thought.



          22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I agree with you.



          23         Okay, moving right along.  We have Committee



          24         Reports and Action Items Resulting.  The first



          25         committee reporting is the CEO Committee.
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           1         Commissioner MacQueen, do you have a report for us



           2         today?



           3                 COMMISSIONER MACQUEEN:  Yes, I do,



           4         Chairman.



           5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed.



           6                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  We have four



           7         resolutions to Review.  The committee passed them



           8         all.  The first one was Review and Approval of



           9         Resolution 2016:15; Award of Contract 130.00



          10         Fields Point Final Clarifier and Miscellaneous



          11         Improvements.  Ray?



          12                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Thank you.  This



          13         project involves a number of improvements at the



          14         Fields Point Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The



          15         primary work is being done on the final



          16         clarifiers.  And on three of those final



          17         clarifiers, we're going to replace the scraper



          18         mechanisms which are located at the bottom of the



          19         tank.  We won't see them if there's water in the



          20         tanks, of course, but on the empty tanks you can



          21         see them.  It sort of moves all the activated



          22         sledge that falls to the bottom of the tanks and



          23         moves it to a central location for a



          24         re-circulation process.



          25                 We're also going to make other
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           1         improvements in the clarifiers which include



           2         covering the effluent line that we call it, which



           3         is the channel on the outside perimeter of the



           4         tank that collects all the clarified effluent.



           5         The water is so clear that the light can penetrate



           6         it, and it creates algae growth which becomes a



           7         maintenance problem for us.  So we're going to



           8         cover that to, you know, minimize that.  We're



           9         also going to do some work that has to do -- they



          10         have concrete stairs that are tending to erode



          11         over there, so we're going to replace those with



          12         aluminum stairs.  And there's some piping -- we're



          13         going to change some rooftop HVAC units that need



          14         to be replaced.



          15                 So it's kind of a mismashed contract of



          16         all these different little things that we've



          17         identified through the asset management program



          18         that we have in place.  So, staff actually put



          19         this contract together internally.  We didn't have



          20         an outside consultant on this, so we did the



          21         specs, we did the plans with our own forces.  We



          22         received two bids on June 7th, and they're



          23         contractors that are well-known to us, Hart



          24         Engineering Corporation and Daniel O'Connell &



          25         Sons.  They're great contractors.
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           1                 Hart was the low bidder at 3.727 to 3.7



           2         million, just a little above.  That was about 12



           3         percent lower than the Daniel O'Connell bid.  So



           4         we checked with Hart to make sure that they were



           5         comfortable with their bid and they said they



           6         were.  So we decided to move forward with the



           7         project.  We, of course, checked their



           8         credentials, which we know well.  They are the



           9         lowest responsive and responsible bidder, and if



          10         you approve awarding the contract to them, they



          11         will have to get they're MBE/WBE plans and EEO



          12         requirements approved by the Rhode Island



          13         Department of Administration.  So, with that, we



          14         ask your approval of Resolution 2016:15 as



          15         outlined.



          16                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  I move passage.



          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner MacQueen



          18         moves passage of Resolution 2016:15, Water



          19         Contract 130 -- 130.00 Fields Point Clarifier.



          20                 COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.



          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner



          22         Montanari seconds the motion.  Is there further



          23         discussion on Resolution 2016:15?  Further



          24         discussion?



          25                 (NO RESPONSE)
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           1                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of



           2         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."



           3                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)



           4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any



           5         opposed?



           6                 (NO RESPONSE)



           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none



           8         opposed and the motion carries.  Further report?



           9         Commissioner MacQueen?



          10                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Yes.  Review and



          11         Approval of Resolution 2016:16; Award of Contract



          12         304.57RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical



          13         Consulting Services for 78-Inch Interceptor



          14         Replacement, and I move to pass it.



          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to



          16         approve Resolution 2016:16.  Discussion?  Ray?



          17                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  This resolution



          18         and the next two, when we get to them, essentially



          19         what their request for is assistance with



          20         engineering consulting during construction.  So



          21         during the bidding process, reviewing shop



          22         drawings once the project gets awarded, doing some



          23         specialty resident inspection.  All of these jobs



          24         we're going to do the actual hard core resident



          25         inspection ourselves with our own staff.  So that
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           1         just kind of sets the stage for each of the three.



           2         This particular one is with a company called



           3         Stantec.  We awarded a contract to them a couple



           4         of years ago to evaluate a 78-inch interceptor



           5         that takes the flow from the Providence River



           6         syphon, which starts on the east side of the



           7         Providence River just below the hurricane barrier,



           8         and takes it under the river to the west side



           9         where it then discharges into this pipe that we're



          10         addressing today.



          11                 This pipe has some significant problems



          12         with it -- along one 500-foot stretch of it.  The



          13         rest of the pipe seems to be in pretty good shape.



          14         We've had some deterioration with excessive



          15         cracking and there's a sag in the pipe as well.



          16         We really need to get out there and replace this.



          17         What makes this job very difficult is it's right



          18         alongside of Route 195 of the new project; all the



          19         bridge abutments and everything.  So it will



          20         require a fair amount of supportive excavation



          21         activity which really adds to the cost, which is



          22         estimated at 7.4 million.



          23                 Like I mentioned it, the job will be bid



          24         this summer.  So, we'll come back to you with the



          25         bid results and the final recommendation for award
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           1         to a contractor in the fall.  But, for now, we



           2         need the assistance of Stantec as we move into the



           3         bidding process, and that will also -- this effort



           4         will also carryover when a contractor is actually



           5         identified and we sign construction documents with



           6         them.  We've negotiated a ceiling price of



           7         $100,000 for this work for Stantec, and that's



           8         what is outlined in Resolution 2016:16, and we ask



           9         your approval.



          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  So, we do



          11         have a motion to approve Resolution 2016:16.  Was



          12         that seconded by Commissioner Montanari?  It was.



          13         Commissioner Farnum as well.  Is there further



          14         discussion on the resolution?  Further discussion



          15         or questions, comments?



          16                 (NO RESPONSE)



          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of



          18         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."



          19                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)



          20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any



          21         opposed?



          22                 (NO RESPONSE)



          23                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none



          24         opposed and the motion carries.  Further new



          25         business?
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           1                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Review and



           2         Approval of Resolution 2016:17; Award of contract



           3         304.44RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical



           4         Consulting Services for Moshassuck Valley



           5         Interceptor Replacement, and I move passage.  Is



           6         there a motion, Mr. Chairman?



           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to



           8         approve Resolution 2016:17, seconded by



           9         Commissioner Montanari and Commissioner Farnum.



          10         Explanations, Director?



          11                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  This project is



          12         actually located in Central Falls.  It's the



          13         section of the Moshassuck Valley Interceptor that



          14         was constructed in the mid-1950s by the Blackstone



          15         Valley District Sewer Commission, and it collects



          16         combined stormwater and wastewater from Central



          17         Falls, Lincoln and Pawtucket.  We have problems



          18         with this pipe based on video surveys and actual



          19         in-person inspections.  There are cracks along the



          20         pipe.  The pipe is pretty damaged, and we need to



          21         replace -- it's about 3,000 feet of this pipe that



          22         is going to be replaced, and we're going to



          23         replace it with 24-inch PVC pipe.  So it will be



          24         brand new.



          25                 We do get some surcharging in this area,
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           1         which means the flow backs up because of the sags



           2         in the pipe.  The soils are bad out there, so



           3         we've had a robust geotechnical design effort



           4         associated with this design.  Louis Berger Group



           5         is the designer on this, but Paul Aldinger &



           6         Associates is their subcontractor, and he's the



           7         one that's been doing all of the supportive



           8         excavation and supportive pipe work.  We estimate



           9         that this project will probably cost in the $5



          10         million range, but we'll find out this summer when



          11         we put it out to bid.



          12                 And, again, we'll bring back the bid



          13         results to you with the recommendation in the fall



          14         that will be the September meeting.  Potentially,



          15         or it will be the meeting following that.  But, in



          16         the meantime, we're looking for a contract award



          17         to Berger to help us again with assistance during



          18         bidding, answering questions, doing shop drawing



          19         reviews and geotechnical inspections once the work



          20         begins, and we've negotiated a cost ceiling of



          21         $150,000 for these services, and that's all



          22         contained in Resolution 2016:17, and we ask your



          23         approval of that.



          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to



          25         approve Resolution 2016:17, seconded by

�

                                                                    22





           1         Commissioner Montanari.  Is there a discussion or



           2         comments regarding the resolution?



           3                 (NO RESPONSE)



           4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all



           5         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."



           6                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)



           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any



           8         opposed?



           9                 (NO RESPONSE)



          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none



          11         opposed and the motion carries.  Further report,



          12         Commissioner MacQueen?



          13                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Review and



          14         Approval of Resolution 2016:18; Award of Contract



          15         109.08RS-Agreement for Professional and Technical



          16         Consulting Services for Fields Point Blower



          17         Improvements Phase II, and I move to passage.



          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I have a motion to



          19         approve Resolution 2016:18, seconded by



          20         Commissioner Montanari.  Mr. Secretary?



          21                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes, this is a



          22         continuing project that we probably started about



          23         two years ago now when we had some issues with the



          24         new turbo blowers that we had installed when we



          25         upgraded the treatment plant.  Their reliability
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           1         came into question.  We went out for an emergency



           2         contract and purchased two of the more traditional



           3         technology blowers called centrifugal blowers.



           4         Those are installed and now we have that whole



           5         array of blower capacity available to us to keep



           6         the process running.  We lose aeration, we lose



           7         the process and we lose treatment, and we violate



           8         our permit.



           9                 So this is a long-term fix that will



          10         dovetail with what we already have in place, and



          11         will provide some additional assurance that we'll



          12         always have the air going into the treatment



          13         process that we need.  CDM Smith has been the



          14         designer on this.  They've done a really good job,



          15         and we're asking for a contract that we can enter



          16         into with them in the amount of $468,000, which



          17         will provide assistance during bidding, shop



          18         drawing review, O&M manual presentation, startup



          19         training as well as limited inspection, that is



          20         the specialty inspection that we'll encounter in



          21         terms of electrical and instrumentation-type



          22         efforts.  We'll do most of the resident inspection



          23         ourselves.



          24                 This project is estimated to cost about



          25         4.7 million.  So the engineering fee for this job,
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           1         when you compare it to the bid price or the



           2         expected bid price of 4.7 million to the others,



           3         the difference is this is much more complex.  The



           4         pipe jobs that we just talked about are more



           5         straightforward.  There is not a lot of technical



           6         review, but there is some that needs to be done.



           7         There were so many other disciplines that are



           8         involved in a project like this that, you know,



           9         require additional scrutiny and evaluation.



          10         That's the reason why proportionally the fee is



          11         higher.  I wanted to explain that for you.  That's



          12         all included in Resolution 2016:18, and we ask



          13         your approval.



          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion and



          15         a second to approve Resolution 2016:18.  Are there



          16         any comments, questions, regarding the matter?



          17                 (NO RESPONSE)



          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of



          19         those that are in favor of approval will say,



          20         "Aye."



          21                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)



          22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any



          23         opposed?



          24                 (NO RESPONSE)



          25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none
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           1         opposed and the motion carries.  Commissioner



           2         MacQueen, further report?



           3                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  That's all I have,



           4         Chairman.



           5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.



           6         Next committee reporting is the Finance Committee.



           7         Finance Committee Chair, Commissioner Andrade is



           8         unavailable today.  The chairman chaired the



           9         finance committee meeting.  There are two matters



          10         that need consideration by the Board.  The first



          11         matter is Review and Approval of Resolution



          12         2016:19; Narragansett Bay Commission Fiscal Year



          13         2017 Operating Budget.  Is there anyone who does



          14         not have a copy of this document?  Karen, are you



          15         going to do an overview, or does the Board want an



          16         overview?  I don't know who was here and who was



          17         not here during the budget discussion.



          18                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  There were twelve



          19         commissioners that were here during that budget



          20         discussion.  I don't know if Karen just wants to



          21         give a real quick recap.



          22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  For the record,



          23         Karen, do you want to give some highlights?



          24                 MS. GIEBINK:  Sure.  Good morning.  This



          25         is the fiscal year 2017 operating budget, and
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           1         there's a lot of information in here.  Overall,



           2         we're looking at a 2.5 percent increase in the



           3         budget over last year's levels.  There are two



           4         additional FTEs included in the budget.  Other



           5         noteworthy items are that there are a number of



           6         impacts that the projects that are anticipated



           7         being completed in fiscal year 2017 will have on



           8         this years operating budget, and they're basically



           9         advantageous to NBC, and those are lighted in the



          10         budget document as well.



          11                 There is no anticipated borrowing in next



          12         years budget, which I'm very sad about.  But we're



          13         gearing up for Phase III, there was a little bit



          14         of a respite there.  Those are the highlights.



          15         There was one change to the resolution under Item



          16         8, which is new language that was inserted into



          17         the resolution this year, and I'd be happy to



          18         answer any questions if you have any.



          19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, most of the



          20         commissioners were here during the presentation of



          21         the budget, but are there any questions regarding



          22         fiscal year 2017 budget document?  Of course the



          23         Executive Director and Karen are available at all



          24         times as you go through this document.  If you



          25         have any questions, just feel free to give a call.
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           1         Ray?



           2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  If you want to know



           3         what the actual resolution reads, if you go to



           4         your budget document and go to the last tab, the



           5         Supporting Schedules, in the first three pages,



           6         which is 221, 222 and 223, that's actually what



           7         you'll be approving or not, depending on your



           8         choice in this resolution.



           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  The Chairman



          10         moves we approve Resolution 2016:19.  Seconded by



          11         Commissioner Lemont, Commissioner Kimball,



          12         Commissioner Carlino.  Discussion on the document?



          13         Or discussion on the resolution, I should say.



          14                 (NO RESPONSE)



          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of



          16         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."



          17                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)



          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any



          19         opposed?



          20                 (NO RESPONSE)



          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none



          22         opposed and the motion carries.  Other item is



          23         Item B, which is Review and Approval of Resolution



          24         2016:20; which is Recommendation for Use of the



          25         Environmental Enforcement Funds.  The resolution
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           1         provides for a -- providing what?



           2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  $2,500.



           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  $2,500 to the Len



           4         Walker Memorial Scholarship Fund for -- this is a



           5         matter which has been near and dear to our late



           6         colleague, Mike Salvatore.  We've done this



           7         annually, and the Chairman moves that we approve



           8         Resolution 2016:20, and it's seconded by



           9         Commissioner Milas, MacQueen, Montanari, Burroughs



          10         Lemont and Kimball.  Discussion on the matter?



          11                 (NO RESPONSE)



          12                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of



          13         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."



          14                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)



          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any



          16         opposed?



          17                 (NO RESPONSE)



          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none



          19         opposed, and the motion carries.  Moving right



          20         along, Personnel Committee.  Commissioner



          21         Campbell?



          22                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  The Personnel



          23         Committee met and we approved amendments to the



          24         personnel plan, and they included a list of



          25         reclassifications and the creation of two new
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           1         positions, and they are all included in the 2017



           2         budget.



           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  You should all have a



           4         copy of this that was provided to you, which is



           5         now made a part of the 2017 fiscal document.  I



           6         don't think approval is necessary.



           7                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  It's not.



           8                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  It does not need a



           9         motion on that.  Next committee reporting is Long



          10         Range Planning.



          11                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Long Range Planning



          12         did not meet.



          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No meeting, Long



          14         Range Planning.  Rules & Regulations did not meet.



          15         Ad Hoc on Ethics did not meet.  Executive



          16         Committee has not met.  Compensation Committee has



          17         not met.  Legislative Report, Joanne?



          18                 MS. MACERONI:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  As the



          19         Executive Director noted, the General Assembly



          20         recessed this Saturday.  This is a preliminary



          21         report that you have on your website until I'm



          22         able to determine what actually has finally come



          23         out of the session as we go forward.  There are



          24         several bills that we were actively involved with



          25         which I just wanted to make note to you.  The
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           1         first one is Article II of the budget.  This has



           2         to do with the Public Finance Management Board and



           3         Debt Management.  It calls for an affordability



           4         study of all agencies within the state and



           5         municipalities.  And the study will be including



           6         recommended limits for debt capacity for each



           7         entity.



           8                 As you may recall, there were other bills



           9         out there that made this limit a mandatory limit,



          10         which we had grave concerns about.  So we're



          11         relieved to see that this is just a recommended



          12         limit, which we will be getting.  In addition,



          13         with regard to Article II, this final article



          14         contains several deadlines which were proposed by



          15         the Narragansett Bay Commission to give the



          16         reporting entities a more realistic time frame to



          17         ensure their compliance.  So we were very happy



          18         that the General Treasurer and the General



          19         Assembly agreed with our proposals.



          20                 The next Bill, H-8354, this bill takes the



          21         place of Article XVIII, and it has to do with



          22         renewable energy and net metering.  Again, the



          23         Narragansett Bay Commission proposed the extension



          24         of two deadlines.  The first being the December



          25         31st, 2016 deadline which was for grandfathering
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           1         remote net metered systems eligible to receive the



           2         distribution credit.  They did change that and



           3         they extended it to December of 2018, which we



           4         were very happy that they did that.  And the



           5         second deadline that we asked for an extension was



           6         January 2040.  That's the date that net metering



           7         credit would start to be reduced for



           8         non-grandfathered projects.  That deadline was



           9         extended to 2050, so we were very happy with that



          10         also.



          11                 And, last, but not least, H-7511 sub A and



          12         sub B, as you know, we did get involved in the



          13         drone issue.  We have concerns about drones flying



          14         over our facilities and the possible damage they



          15         could do.  There is a drone commission as well as



          16         there were several bills out there, including



          17         7511.  That's the last -- that's the only bill



          18         that actually made it through.  What it does is it



          19         grants exclusive authority to regulate drones to



          20         the State of Rhode Island and the Rhode Island



          21         Airport Corporation.  We will be working hard with



          22         the drone commission and the state as they develop



          23         the regulations to ensure that the concerns of all



          24         wastewater treatment facilities are addressed.



          25                 The rest of the report contains all the
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           1         bills that did not pass that we were following,



           2         and I am happy to say that all the bills that we



           3         opposed did not make it through.  So, as of now, I



           4         think we had a good session.  I'll know more in



           5         the next couple of weeks, but that's my report for



           6         today.



           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  The mere sight of you



           8         up there, Joanne, strikes fear into the heart of



           9         the legislation.



          10                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Mr. Chairman, if I



          11         could, I want the Board to know just how many



          12         hours and how hard and how many headaches Joanne



          13         incurred over this General Assembly session,



          14         especially in the last several days.  She was



          15         literally home on a Friday night and in the middle



          16         of the night got up, I believe she contacted one



          17         of our commissioners, as a matter of fact.  It was



          18         like two or three in the morning you went over



          19         there or something crazy like that because a bill



          20         surfaced out of nowhere.  I mean, it is just -- I



          21         mean, it's amazing what she has done, and we



          22         should really thank her because we wouldn't be in



          23         the position that we're in if she hadn't been up



          24         there as much as she did.  Thank you, Joanne.



          25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I want to add that
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           1         it's very obvious when you go into the building,



           2         the high amount of respect by all the legislatures



           3         there they have for Joanne.  We appreciate your



           4         efforts, Joanne.  And by the way, Joan Milas is up



           5         there watching out for us as well, spending a lot



           6         of time up there in the wee hours.  Joan, thank



           7         you as well.



           8                 COMMISSIONER MILAS:  We were together at



           9         4:00 in the morning.



          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Do you know how rare



          11         it is to find Joanne home on a Friday night?



          12                 COMMISSIONER MILAS:  As opposed to me on a



          13         Friday night that spends it at the State House?



          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.



          15         Next report, Citizens Advisory Committee.  Is



          16         there anybody here?  How are you?



          17                 MR. SCHACTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



          18         We had a very productive meeting.  We took the



          19         opportunity of inviting Walter Palm, the current



          20         laboratory manager in, and he gave us a view of



          21         the past and, of course, an overview of the future



          22         as the transition goes forward from old to new in



          23         the laboratory area.  It was very, very



          24         informative.  And, of course, Walter's 15 years of



          25         service told us a lot, and we give him very, very
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           1         high marks for his efforts before, and we look



           2         forward to many years working with him.  But it



           3         was extremely a great opportunity at a time like



           4         this, as the transition goes forward, to have a



           5         firsthand view from the chief.  That's my report.



           6         Thank you.



           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.



           8         Thank you.  Next item, Item Number 7, Chairman's



           9         Report.  Very busy week for the Chairman -- it's



          10         been a busy month, I should say.  I've spent a



          11         great deal of this past month working with legal



          12         counsel, Joe DeAngelis and Laurie Horridge



          13         regarding the Wind Energy Development



          14         Corporation's project in Coventry, our net



          15         metering program.  There were tense meetings.  A



          16         number of issues surfaced.  Laurie and Joe worked



          17         very diligently to protect the Commissioners'



          18         interests.  We're moving forward.



          19                 I don't know the exact date that we're



          20         going to be turning the switch and generating



          21         power, but our next meeting is going to be on



          22         September the 20th because we're taking the summer



          23         off.  But, if anything happens during that period



          24         of time when we culminate all of the issues that



          25         are still being worked on, everyone of you will be
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           1         notified.  I'm certain there's going to be some



           2         kind of -- I'm told there's going to be a press



           3         conference or a press release issued by the



           4         developer as he kicks off this project in the next



           5         three or four weeks, maybe, I'm not sure.  I'm



           6         certain that we will be invited.  Of course we'll



           7         invite all the commissioners as well, and we will



           8         apprise the Board on any matters of concern as



           9         soon as we know the climate regarding the final



          10         resolution to all of the issues.



          11                 So, as I said, the next meeting is



          12         September the 20th, and I want you to have a great



          13         safe healthy summer, but before we adjourn, I



          14         would like to say that -- just before we adjourn,



          15         we're going to take a group photo.  I think we're



          16         going to do it here.  Where is Jamie?  Jamie is



          17         organizing this.  I don't know where she is.  Is



          18         she in the room?



          19                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  No, she's just



          20         walking in now.



          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  So, what Jamie



          22         is intending for us to do is to get a group photo



          23         here, and then we're going to go over to the new



          24         lab building.  We're going to cut a ribbon and



          25         we're going to dedicate this building to our
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           1         former commissioner, the late Commissioner Len



           2         Walker.  His family will be here and then after



           3         that, we're going to -- in the operations building



           4         there's refreshments and some food.  So, let me



           5         just -- we have about two minutes left to adjourn



           6         the meeting.  Jamie?



           7                 MS. SAMONS:  So, we're actually going to



           8         do the group photo over in the new building.



           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There's been a



          10         change.  Like in the General Assembly, things



          11         change very quickly around here.



          12                 MS. SAMONS:  Because the light is so good



          13         over there.



          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  Well,



          15         that's great.  That's fine with me.  So that



          16         really concludes the Chairman's Report, and we'll



          17         keep you apprised of everything that is happening



          18         with Wind Energy.  And Laurie, again, thank you so



          19         much for your efforts in helping to bring that to



          20         a close.  Joe, you did great.  We know we can



          21         always count on you.  Thank you.  Is there any new



          22         business to come before the Board today?



          23                 (NO RESPONSE)



          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No new business.



          25         Other business of any nature?  Commissioner
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           1         Kimball, do you have something?



           2                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  At the last



           3         meeting, Mr. Chairman, we talked about perhaps



           4         visiting the site of -- the Coventry site.



           5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Yes.



           6                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  Has anything been



           7         arranged, or are we going to wait until all the



           8         details are worked out?



           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  What say you,



          10         counselor?



          11                 MS. HORRIDGE:  I guess we could arrange



          12         for everyone to go out there.  I mean, I don't



          13         know why you necessarily want to see it before



          14         it's turnkey since that will probably happen in



          15         the next month anyway.  It probably makes sense to



          16         wait.



          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Kimball,



          18         do you want to see it before we actually close it?



          19                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  No.



          20                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I'll tell you what,



          21         what I would suggest is that if you're interested



          22         in going out to see the actual site, send an



          23         e-mail to Karen Musumeci and, you know, roughly



          24         when is the best time.  One of the things we might



          25         run into is the fact that if it's scheduled for a
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           1         particular day, a lot of folks might be on



           2         vacation or whatever.  So, you know, we can -- not



           3         everyone has to go at the same time is what I was



           4         trying to get out.  If there are three or four or



           5         five of you and it's all different times, Rich



           6         Bernier and his team will be happy to take you



           7         down there because they know where everything is



           8         and they can ride you through, you know, the



           9         project, and we want to keep an eye on what's



          10         going on down there anyway so --



          11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So Richard and Tom



          12         have been going on a pretty regular basis; right?



          13         You guys have been going down?



          14                 MR. UVA:  Rich has.



          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  How often do you --



          16         Rich?



          17                 MR. BERNIER:  How often do we go down?



          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Yeah, how often?



          19                 MR. BERNIER:  Well, lately, not too often



          20         because it's rough.



          21                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Okay, but you



          22         wouldn't mind going once a week anyway; right?



          23                 MR. BERNIER:  Anytime.



          24                 COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  Can he just do a



          25         drive-by or is it --
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           1                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  You can see them



           2         from 102, some of them.



           3                 MR. BERNIER:  You can just see just above



           4         the treetops.



           5                 COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  The road in is



           6         blocked off unless you're -- just see above the



           7         treetops Farnum.



           8                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Anybody want to go



           9         down next week at all?  Does anybody want to go



          10         down?



          11                 MS. DeROCHE:  Yeah.



          12                 MS. MILAS:  Yeah.



          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, pick a day.



          14         Pick a day.  Give me a day, we'll do it right now.



          15                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  Well, right next



          16         to the entrance to the whole project is this place



          17         called the Sawmill Produce -- or they grow



          18         vegetables and stuff.  It would make sense if



          19         people wanted to go there is to meet there at a --



          20         I think I'm pretty sure you can park in there, or



          21         meet there at a particular day and time, and then



          22         go in with Rich or Tom.



          23                 MS. HORRIDGE:  Why don't we coordinate



          24         that with the developer.



          25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Sure.  All right, so
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           1         what we'll do --



           2                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Next Wednesday or



           3         Thursday, maybe, we'll give it a try.



           4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We'll coordinate



           5         something.  Call everyone and we'll figure out



           6         just exactly how we're going to organize it, okay.



           7         We'll get it done next week.  Okay, great.  Any



           8         other new business?  Other business of any kind?



           9         No one?



          10                 (NO RESPONSE)



          11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Bennett



          12         moves that we adjourn; right?



          13                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Yes, sir.



          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Bennett



          15         moves that we adjourn.  Seconded by Commissioner



          16         Farnum.  All in favor of adjournment will say,



          17         "Aye."



          18                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)



          19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Any opposed?



          20                 (NO RESPONSE)



          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  None opposed.  We are



          22         now adjourned.



          23                 (HEARING ADJOURNED AT 11:57 A.M.)



          24



          25
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